
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Apr 04 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Tynes Elementary Chorus, Megan Hines, Music Teacher)

Invocation (Pastor Jason Brown, Black Pond Baptist Church, Middleburg)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients

2. Recognition of State Thespians

3. Recognition of State Champions

Presenters

School Showcase (Tynes Elementary School, Sarah Brennan, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

4. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

5. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

6. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Instruction-Instructional Resources

7. D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Materials

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies Teacher Ranking Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Science Preselection Committee Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Adoption NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE SB
Policy.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Social Studies Adoption Packet.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Science Adoption Packet.pdf

Page 1 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52852
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52873
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52904
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52864
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52861
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52860
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52831
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-social-studies-teacher-ranking-results.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-science-preselection-committee-results.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-social-studies-and-k-12-science-adoption-notice-of-approval-to-advertise-sb-policy.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-social-studies-and-k-12-science-adoption-notice-of-approval-to-advertise-sb-policy.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k12-social-studies-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k12-science-adoption-packet.pdf


Consent Agenda

Superintendent

8. C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on February 27, 2024; Student Discipline
Hearings and Regular Meeting on March 7, 2024

2024 Feb 27 Special Mtg.pdf

2024 Feb 27 Workshop.pdf

2024 Mar 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Mar 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

9. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda - April 4 2024.pdf

10. C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2024-25

11. C4 - Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2024-2025 School Year

12. C5 - Proclamation #24-14 to Establish May 6 - 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday,
May 7, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Day

Teacher Appreciation Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

13. C6 - Proclamation #24-15 to Establish April 22 - 26, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday,
April 24, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County.

Administrative Professionals Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

14. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

April 2024 Student Travel.pdf

15. C8 - Proposed Florida Youth Challenge Academy Student/Employee Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

FLYCA Student-Employee 2024-2025 Calendar.pdf

16. C9 - 2024 Secondary Summer Programs Calendars Revised

Secondary Summer Programs Calendar 2024 Revised.pdf

17. C10 - 2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar revised

2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar Revised.pdf

Instruction-Adult Education

18. C11 - CCDS-Adult & Community Education (ClayACE) and Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ)
MOU for Post-Secondary Adult Pre-Apprenticeship Program

240120 Elec Training Alliance MOU with ACE.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

19. C12 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University (JU)

Page 2 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52830
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52830
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-feb-27-special-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-feb-27-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-mar-7-regular-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52865
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-april-4-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52856
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52857
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52858
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52858
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/teacher-appreciation-proclamation-2023-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52859
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52859
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/administrative-professionals-proclamation-2023-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52897
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2024-student-travel_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52896
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/flyca-student-employee-2024-2025-calendar.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52895
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/secondary-summer-programs-calendar-2024-revised.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52901
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-vpk-3rd-grade-summer-camp-calendar-revised.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52851
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52851
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240120-elec-training-alliance-mou-with-ace.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52855


240118 Jacksonville University.pdf

20. C13 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University (ASU)

240130 Arizona State Univ.pdf

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

21. C14 - Proclamation #24-16 to Establish April, 2024 as School Library Month in Clay County

Proclamation-April-2024-School-Library-Media-Month.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

22. C15 - Proclamation #24-17, National School Nurse Week

Nurses Week Proclamation24 (1).pdf

23. C16 -  Proclamation # 24-18: Month of the Military Child, Purple Up Day April 17, 2024

Month of Military Child  Proclamation 2024.docx.pdf

Business Affairs

24. C17 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

25. C18 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

26. C19 - Request for the Adoption of Resolution #24-19, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation,
Series 2024A

Business Affairs-Accounting

27. C20 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2024

February 2024 Monthly Board Property Reports.pdf

February 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

28. C21 - Budget Amendment Report for February 29, 2024

Budget Report_February 29 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Internal Accounts

29. C22 - NSF Checks

CHS NSF check write off Agenda.pdf

Business Affairs-Payroll

30. C23 -  Approval of the 2024-2025 Payroll Calendars

2024-2025 Master Payroll Calendar.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 10 Mo 196 & 197.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 11 Month 216.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 12 month 260 .pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Employee Work Days.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Processing Dates.pdf
Page 3 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240118-jacksonville-university.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52871
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240130-arizona-state-univ.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52849
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-april-2024-school-library-media-month.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52834
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation24-1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52875
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/month-of-military-child-proclamation-2024docx.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52877
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52878
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52888
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52888
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52892
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2024-monthly-board-property-reports.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2024-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-50000-to-100000_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52889
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-report_february-29-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52847
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-nsf-check-write-off-agenda.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52881
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-master-payroll-calendar.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-10-mo-196-197.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-11-month-216.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-12-month-260.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-24_25-payroll-employee-work-days.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-24_25-payroll-processing-dates.pdf


2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 9 Month ALL.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - SUMMER 2024.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - FYCA .pdf

Business Affairs-Property

31. C24 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

32. C25 - BID Renewal

Operations-Facilities

33. C26 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Certificate of Substantial Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

Certificate of Final Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

34. C27 - Substantial and Final Completion of Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting
Replacement

Certificate of Substantial Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

Certificate of Final Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

35. C28 - Appointments for the Citizens Oversight Committee

Citizen Oversight Committee Members.pdf

36. C29 - School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Agreement between the Clay County School Board,
Clay County, and Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (Baxley Villas)

PSM Agreement - Forestar Real Estate Group.pdf

37. C30 - Lakeside Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Lakeside Elementary Restroom Renovations Contract 4.4.24.pdf

38. C31 - Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Orange Park Elementary Restroom Contract 4.4.24.pdf

39. C32 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.4.24

40. C33 - Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract Award

Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract 4.4.24.pdf

41. C34 - S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award

S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair.Replacement 4.4.24.pdf

42. C35 - Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion
Control

FIH Batting Practice Building Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

43. C36 - Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion
Page 4 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-9-month-all.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-summer-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-fyca.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52872
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-march-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52890
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52879
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52880
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52880
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-blc-parking-lot-renovations-1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-blc-parking-lot-renovations.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52882
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/citizen-oversight-committee-members.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52883
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52883
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/psm-agreement-forestar-real-estate-group.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52884
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lakeside-elementary-restroom-renovations-contract-4424.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52885
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/orange-park-elementary-restroom-contract-4424.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52891
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4424.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52894
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/orange-park-high-school-media-center-renovation-contract-4424.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52898
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/s-bryan-jennings-fire-alarm-repairreplacement-4424.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52899
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52899
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fih-batting-practice-building-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52900


MHS Cafeteria Expansion Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 5 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-cafeteria-expansion-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf


School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize President's Volunteer Service Award Recipients

Description
The President's Volunteer Service Award is a prestigious national honor that highlights commitment to unpaid acts of volunteer
service benefitting others in the community.  This award requires a minimum of 75 service hours for students ages 5-10, a
minimum of 100 service hours for students ages 11-15, and a minimum of 250 service hours for young adults ages 16-25.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of State Thespians

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of State Champions

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
John Stilianou, Coordinator of District Athletics, john.stilianou@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 9 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 10 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 11 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Materials

Description
The Pre-selection Adoption Committees included teacher representatives from each impacted subject area and parents.  The
committee vetted materials for the considered courses using a comprehensive rubric that aligned curricula to materials. The
Social Studies committee met on October 16th and the Science committee met on January 5th to thoroughly review all available
curriculum options from the state adoption list. The teams worked to apply rigorous alignment criteria using evaluation tools
provided by the Instructional Resources Department and District Curriculum Specialists to each selection to determine the top
two products that would best meet the needs of the students of Clay County. 
To finalize the vetting process, all impacted teachers were asked to provide feedback about the top choices and the ability of each
to meet the needs of their students. To be as transparent as possible, the surveys provided detailed information about each
product being considered.  Feedback was provided to the District Committee who reviewed the teacher feedback and
recommendations. 
The top products selected for each subject are posted on the Instructional Resources page of the District’s website. The public is
encouraged to view the products and express their individual comments and/or concerns about each one. 
Florida State Statute 1006.283 requires an open, noticed school board hearing to receive public comment on the recommended
instructional materials. The publication of  notice allows CCDS to meet this requirement

Gap Analysis
Some Instructional Materials for K-12 Social Studies were adopted during the 2022-2023 adoption year  and materials for
Science were last adopted in 2018.

Previous Outcomes
Statute requires a district to adopt within two years of the State’s adoption year.  F.S. 1006.283 Requires a public hearing to be
posted in a publication 20 calendar days prior to the event in order for the public to be made fully aware of the District’s
intentions.

Expected Outcomes
These materials would provide the teachers of Clay County current, quality, and aligned materials to enable them the ability to
deliver and plan engaging lessons, and provide students with the resources to maximize learning and increase student outcomes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders
Strategy: 1.1: Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system.

Recommendation
That the School Board approve as advertised the Social Studies and Science materials.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Estimated cost=$8,000,000 in Materials Funding

Review Comments

Attachments

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies Teacher Ranking Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Science Preselection Committee Results.pdf

Page 12 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-social-studies-teacher-ranking-results.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-science-preselection-committee-results.pdf


2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Adoption NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE SB Policy.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Social Studies Adoption Packet.pdf

2023-2024 K12 Science Adoption Packet.pdf

Page 13 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k-12-social-studies-and-k-12-science-adoption-notice-of-approval-to-advertise-sb-policy.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k12-social-studies-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-2024-k12-science-adoption-packet.pdf


2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies Adoption Materials Overall Ranking
Teacher Feedback Results

*Ranking of materials
First Choice Second Choice

Grade Course Title Course Number

K Social Studies Grade K 5012020

McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 
Studies Curriculum 

Florida Social Studies, Living, 
Learning, and Working Together 

Grade K

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida Kindergarten Social 
Studies: Living, Learning, and 

Working Together

1 Social Studies Grade 1 5012030
McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 

Studies Curriculum 
Florida Social Studies, Our 

Community and Beyond, Grade 1

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida 1st Grade Social Studies: 
Our Community and Beyond

2 Social Studies Grade 2 5012040
McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 

Studies Curriculum 
Florida Social Studies, Who We 

Are As Americans, Grade 2

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida 2nd Grade Social Studies: 
Who We Are As Americans

3 Social Studies Grade 3 5012050

McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 
Studies Curriculum 

Florida Social Studies, The United 
States: Its Regions and Neighbors, 

Grade 3

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida 3rd Grade Social Studies: 
United States' Regions and

Neighbors

4 Social Studies Grade 4 5012060
McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 

Studies Curriculum 
Florida Social Studies, Florida 

Studies, Grade 4 

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida 4th Grade Social Studies: 
Florida Studies + Financial Literacy

5 Social Studies Grade 5 5012070
McGraw Hill LLC's K-5 Social 

Studies Curriculum 
Florida Social Studies, United 

States History, Grade 5

Gallopade's K-5 Social Studies 
Curriculum

Florida 5th Grade Social Studies: 
United States History

7-8
M/J Civics & Career Planning, 
Advanced, Advanced & Career 

Planning

2106016
2106020
2106026

McGraw Hill LLC's Civics, Florida 
Edition

Savvas Learning Company, LLC's 
Florida Civics Interactive 

7-8 M/J United States History, 
Advanced & Career Planning

2100010
2100020
2100025

McGraw Hill Education's United 
States History: Voices and 

Perspectives, Early Years, Florida 
Edition

National Geographic's (Cengage) 
U.S. History Beginnings to 1877, 

Florida Edition

9-12 United States History & Honors 2100310
2100320 

Florida Transformative Education
Gateway to US History with 

Revised Civics and Government 
Standards

McGraw Hill
United States History, Modern 

Times, Florida Edition

Page 14 of 402

DRAFT



2023-2024 K-12 Science Adoption 
Preselection Committee Results

Course 
Number

Grade 
Level Course Name Top 2 Choices Listed Alphabetically

5020010 K Science - Grade K McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

5020020 1 Science - Grade 1 McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

5020030 2 Science - Grade 2 McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

5020040 3 Science - Grade 3 McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

5020050 4 Science - Grade 4 McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

5020060 5 Science - Grade 5 McGraw Hill Florida Science 
Grade K-5

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 

©2025, Grade K-5

2002040 6 M/J Comprehensive 
Science 1

Discovery Education
Science Techbook for Florida

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 
©2025, Comprehensive 1-3

2002070 7 M/J Comprehensive 
Science 2

Discovery Education
Science Techbook for Florida

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 
©2025, Comprehensive 1-3

2002100 8 M/J Comprehensive 
Science 3

Discovery Education
Science Techbook for Florida

Savvas
Florida Science Explorations 
©2025, Comprehensive 1-3

2000350 9-12 Anatomy and 
Physiology

Cengage/Nat Geo
Body Structures and Functions - 

Anatomy and Physiology

McGraw Hill Florida Hole's 
Essentials of Human Anatomy 

and Physiology

2001350 9-12 Astronomy 
Solar/Galactic

Cengage/Nat Geo
Foundations of Astronomy Foundations of Astronomy

2000310 9-12 Biology 1 National Geographic Biology, 
Florida Edition

Savvas
Florida Miller & Levine 

Experience Biology
 ©2025

2003340 9-12 Chemistry 1 McGraw Hill Florida Chemistry
Savvas

Florida Experience Chemistry 
©2025

2001340 9-12 Environmental 
Science

National Geographic 
Environmental Science 

Sustaining Your World, Florida 
Edition

Savvas
Florida Environmental Science, 

Your World Your Turn ©2025

2002480 9-12 Forensic Science 1
Cengage/Nat Geo

Forensic Science: Fundamentals 
& Investigations

2002500 9-12 Marine Science 1
Cengage/Nat Geo

National Geographic 
Oceanography: An Invitation to 

Marine Science

McGraw Hill Florida Marine 
Science

2003310 9-12 Physical Science McGraw Hill Florida Physical 
Science

2003380 9-12 Physics 1 McGraw Hill Florida Physics
Savvas

Florida Experience Physics 
©2025

Page 15 of 402

DRAFT



 
 
 

   
 

  
 
 
Approval to Advertise: The School Board of Clay County, Florida (“the Board”) approves the advertisement of 
a Legal Public Notice for the K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Textbook Adoption. 
 
Purpose & Effect: The proposed adoption pertains to the implementation of the state and school district policies 
and procedures regarding K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science.  
 
Access to Text of Proposed Amendments: The selected texts will be displayed for public viewing on April 4,  
prior to the regular school board meeting between the hours of 5pm and 6pm. The texts are also available for 
viewing by appointment in the Instructional Resources Department of Clay County District Schools, located at 
900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043, from February 1 through April 3.  
 
Rule Making Authority:  The Board is authorized to select adequate instructional materials for students in 
accordance with section 1006.283 of the Florida Statutes 
 
Laws Implemented: The laws implemented by the above-referenced adoption fall within Florida Statute 
1006.28. 
 
Person(s) Originating Policy Changes:  The proposed adoption was originated by the Chief Academic Officer 
in collaboration with the Supervisor of Instructional Resources.   
 
Public Hearing: The Board intends to formally adopt the proposed texts following a public hearing. The public 
hearing shall be held on Thursday, April 4, 2024, during the course of the Board’s regular meeting, which 
begins at 6:00 p.m. and takes place in the Boardroom at the Teacher In-service Training Center at Fleming 
Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida.   
 
Any person requiring special accommodations to attend or participate in public meetings should advise the 
School District at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the Superintendent’s Office at (904) 336-6508. 
If you are hearing or speech impaired, you may contact the District by email addressed to 
bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net or by calling (904) 336-6584 (TDD). 
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the 
meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which 
the appeal is to be based. 
 
 
 

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE/NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT  
K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science 

 

Page 16 of 402

DRAFT



Page 17 of 402

DRAFT



Page 18 of 402

DRAFT



Page 19 of 402

DRAFT



Page 20 of 402

DRAFT



Page 21 of 402

DRAFT



Page 22 of 402

DRAFT



Page 23 of 402

DRAFT



Page 24 of 402

DRAFT



Page 25 of 402

DRAFT



Page 26 of 402

DRAFT



Page 27 of 402

DRAFT



Page 28 of 402

DRAFT



Page 29 of 402

DRAFT



Page 30 of 402

DRAFT



Page 31 of 402

DRAFT



Page 32 of 402

DRAFT



Page 33 of 402

DRAFT



Page 34 of 402

DRAFT



Page 35 of 402

DRAFT



Page 36 of 402

DRAFT



Page 37 of 402

DRAFT



Page 38 of 402

DRAFT



Page 39 of 402

DRAFT



Page 40 of 402

DRAFT



Page 41 of 402

DRAFT



Page 42 of 402

DRAFT



Page 43 of 402

DRAFT



Page 44 of 402

DRAFT



Page 45 of 402

DRAFT



Page 46 of 402

DRAFT



Page 47 of 402

DRAFT



Page 48 of 402

DRAFT



Page 49 of 402

DRAFT



Page 50 of 402

DRAFT



Page 51 of 402

DRAFT



Page 52 of 402

DRAFT



Page 53 of 402

DRAFT



Page 54 of 402

DRAFT



Page 55 of 402

DRAFT



Page 56 of 402

DRAFT



Page 57 of 402

DRAFT



Page 58 of 402

DRAFT



Page 59 of 402

DRAFT



Page 60 of 402

DRAFT



Page 61 of 402

DRAFT



Page 62 of 402

DRAFT



Page 63 of 402

DRAFT



Page 64 of 402

DRAFT



Page 65 of 402

DRAFT



Page 66 of 402

DRAFT



Page 67 of 402

DRAFT



Page 68 of 402

DRAFT



Page 69 of 402

DRAFT



Page 70 of 402

DRAFT



Page 71 of 402

DRAFT



Page 72 of 402

DRAFT



Page 73 of 402

DRAFT



Page 74 of 402

DRAFT



Page 75 of 402

DRAFT



Page 76 of 402

DRAFT



Page 77 of 402

DRAFT



Page 78 of 402

DRAFT



Page 79 of 402

DRAFT



Page 80 of 402

DRAFT



Page 81 of 402

DRAFT



Page 82 of 402

DRAFT



Page 83 of 402

DRAFT



Page 84 of 402

DRAFT



Page 85 of 402

DRAFT



Page 86 of 402

DRAFT



Page 87 of 402

DRAFT



Page 88 of 402

DRAFT



Page 89 of 402

DRAFT



Page 90 of 402

DRAFT



Page 91 of 402

DRAFT



Page 92 of 402

DRAFT



Page 93 of 402

DRAFT



Page 94 of 402

DRAFT



Page 95 of 402

DRAFT



Page 96 of 402

DRAFT



Page 97 of 402

DRAFT



Page 98 of 402

DRAFT



Page 99 of 402

DRAFT



Page 100 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on February 27, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings
and Regular Meeting on March 7, 2024

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 Feb 27 Special Mtg.pdf

2024 Feb 27 Workshop.pdf

2024 Mar 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Mar 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 101 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-feb-27-special-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-feb-27-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-mar-7-regular-mtg.pdf


Date: Feb 27 2024 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

February 27, 2024 - School Board Special Meeting

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Agenda Items

1. Interlocal Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, FLorida and the Board of County Commissioners of Clay County,
Florida - (Funding for Transition of School Resource Officers to CCSO)

CCSB Interlocal Transition 2.22.24 Final.pdf

Exhibit A to Interlocal Transition.pdf

Minutes:

Prior to voting on this item, School Board Attorney Jeremiah Blocker provided clarification on a slight revision and Chair Gilhousen
read the following statement into the record:

"Counsel for the Board of County Commissioners has requested a revision to the Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of
clay County and the board of County Commissioners of Clay County, Florida.  Specifically, paragraph 7 has been revised to delete the
phrase "through its Comptroller" so that the obligations under the agreement remain strictly between the School Board and the
County and do not involve another constitutional office."

Motion
Motion to Approve Interlocal Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Board of County Commissioners
of Clay County, Florida

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

2. Approve Contract for Legal Services between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Douglas Law Firm

2_12_2024 Contract For Legal Services CTD signature (002).pdf

Minutes:

Mrs. Clark requested that this contract be reviewed again in six months and there was consensus among the board to do so.

Mrs. Gilhousen proposed reviewing evaluation tools, one specific to the board and one specific to the superintendent.

Superintendent Broskie indicated this is the next evolution in this process and feels positive about the direction being taken.Page 102 of 402

DRAFT



Mrs. Bolla wants to ensure the many district needs are being addressed.

Motion
Motion to Approve Contract for Legal Services between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Douglas Law Firm

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Mary Bolla
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

Presentations from the Audience

3. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Carol Papuga 
Kelly Robertson 
Kim Lanoux
Christie Torode 
Joette Alt Revels
Jeanette DiRocco 
Michelle Bowman

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments

4. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla thanked the media specialists for their insights and offered her apologies for not having included them previously.

Mrs. Hanson remarked on the necessity of stakeholder feedback and her efforts to put media specialists at the forefront of policy and
procedural decisions.  She noted the mishandling of representation and communication of a brand new policy after the school year
started and the burden that placed on media specialists, never having wanted to place the demands of the current process on a
teacher.  She indicated that other counties utilize technology to capture parents' decisions as they log into the parent portal. 
She believes the policy being presented today provides everything the media specialists want with the exception of an opt-in option. 
She indicated that her work on the policy was written for them and is about them, with collaboration from the district.

Mrs. Clark also appreciated the time taken by the media specialists today to attend the meeting.

Adjournment  (9:38 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 103 of 402

DRAFT



Date: Feb 27 2024 (9:10 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

February 27, 2024 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Given at preceding Special meeting)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Neola Presentation

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie introduced Annette Martinson and Tom Wittmer, Neola, who provided an overview of services Neola offers to
facilitate the development of board bylaws and policies, as well as administrative guidelines/procedures and forms.  District staff
would work with Neola to develop policies that ensure compliance with state statutes, and Neola will update policies twice per
year based on changes in state and federal statutes as necessary.  Neola will work directly with board members as policies pertaining
to board governance are addressed. A series of templates that may be used as a starting point are provided, with options for choices
of direction to arrive at a unique policy. Neola will provide BoardDocs access through the development of policies and then following
their finalization, adoption, and publication to the OneClay website.

2. Penda Presentation

Penda Board Workshop Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Katie Ruelas, Science Curriculum Specialist, provided an overview (attached) of Penda, a supplemental science resource that
provides support for small groups, Exceptional Student Education students, and English Language Learners students.  Results of a
teacher user survey, Penda usage data, and achievement statistics data were shared.  State science benchmarks as well as the
science instructional model were also reviewed, reflecting 83% of teachers want to continue using Penda for the 2024-2025 school
year.

Mrs. Bolla inquired about the work progress of students who may not be able to finish the assignment during their class time and was
advised the progress is saved so students may resume where they left off.  Mrs. Bolla appreciates the differentiated instruction and
the ability for students to start on the proper level, be tested for mastery, and move on through their achievements.

Mrs. Skipper asked if there are tests that allow students to practice and was advised there are baseline, mid-year, and mock
assessments in subject areas for students to take a practice test similar to what they will take in Synergy.  Mrs. Skipper would like a
year-to-date, side-by-side screenshot of all programs and the screen time for each program.  Mrs. Gilhousen indicated caution should
be exercised in the reading and analysis of this data because not all classrooms utilize the program.  Mrs. Hanson questioned the
amount of technology the district has in relation to the time students spend on the technology.

Mrs. Hanson expressed concern about the program being utilized appropriately, stating that some teachers use this program for a
graded homework assignment and as an independent learning tool without employing pre-taught lessons.  Superintendent Broskie
indicated that this is a supplemental resource tool with standards embedded vertically across the curriculum, one piece of the entirety
of science curriculum, and that professional development will include additional guidance for this program. 

Following this presentation, a recess was taken at 10:39 a.m. and the meeting resumed at 10:53 a.m.

3. Review of Draft Book Challenge Policy

Page 104 of 402

DRAFT



02.23.2024 Clean Library Media Challenged Materials Policy .pdf

02.2024 Secondary Library Book Access Level Form.pdf

02.2024 Elementary Library Book Access Level Form .pdf

Elementary Library Book Access Levels.pdf

Secondary Library Book Access Levels (3).pdf

02.2024 CCDS Specific Material Objection Form 6A-7.0714 .pdf

Library Challenge Process Flow Chart (1).pdf

School Board Presentation_ Book Challenge .pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie introduced Jennifer Collins, Supervisor of School Improvement and Leadership Development, and Dr. Cynthia
Johnson, Supervisor of Instructional Resources, who reviewed the attached visual presentation re the draft Challenged Materials
Policy - Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials.  

Mrs.Hanson indicated her disappointment that the presentation did not represent her work over the past six months.  She stated that
she refuses to give up informed parental consent and indicated that the documents presented reflect all opt-out, which she stated is
not informed consent, and stressed the need to make parents aware of the potential for there being materials in school libraries that
are not appropriate for students.  With regards to the amount of work placed on media specialists in an opt-in policy, she suggests
using technology to make it easier for media specialists, requiring parents to make informed consent through the portal, with parents
being aware that there are themes in the libraries that may not be appropriate for all families.

Mrs. Skipper stated that all parents do not always know about content and she also supports utilizing technology to have all forms be
electronic.  She asked Mr. Blocker if the proposed community standards could be implemented for future purchasing by the media
specialists, and Mr. Blocker confirmed these standards may be applied to purchasing.  Mrs. Hanson indicated there is a well-defined
rubric for purchasing that included media specialists' input as well as examples for all categories.

Mrs. Bolla expressed hesitance about community standards but appreciates books being flagged with mature themes.  

Mrs. Clark expressed concern with parents who don't speak English and received confirmation that Clay County Schools
utilizes software to provide translation for the information.

Media specialists in attendance then posed questions:

How can a love of learning be fostered with barriers?
What about students who don't have the ability to go to a public library?
Where is the trust in media specialists to purchase and label appropriate books that challenge students while keeping them
safe?
How can the inability of some parents to fill out a form be managed?

Mrs. Skipper confirmed with Mr. Blocker that a disclaimer could be utilized to meet the requirement for informed consent, and Mr.
Broskie indicated that the disclaimer could be added.

Additional discussion and clarification re general, general unlimited, and limited access occurred.  Mr. Broskie requested direction
from the board re moving forward to advertise the proposed policy while work continues to occur on related procedures.  Board
consensus was to move forward with advertising the proposed policy changes. 

4. 2024-2025 Proposed Allocations

FINAL 2024-25 Staff Allocation PPT.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie reviewed the attached presentation and allocation package presented to board members under the guiding
principles of stability, fiscal conservativeness, flexibility, and transparency which incorporates student projections.  An overall summary
of proposed allocation changes at all schools and district offices was provided, including the financial impact of recommended
allocations.  

Dr. Melanie Sanders, Director of Exceptional Student Education, responded to Mrs. Hanson's question re the distribution of school
site specialists and the proposed new service model for schools to receive increased, focused ESE services.

Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, discussed the reorganization of one of her departments and
additional oversight in a second department, indicating more support is needed to provide clear oversight of school internal accounts
activities and Employee Benefits and Risk Management will be restructured under one supervisor of both areas.

Page 105 of 402

DRAFT



Mrs. Clark commented on Clay being one of two counties nationwide with a large number of military ESE families being directed to
Clay schools for services.

Mrs. Skipper asked about the support for early literacy as one of the strategic plan goals, inquiring specifically about supplementing
assistance within the K-3 classrooms and expanding the use of small groups to strengthen early literacy support.  Mr. Broskie advised
Clay now has an early literacy department to provide those resources to students and that the adoption of science and reading
materials is an additional step in the right direction.  Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, indicated that a stronger
component of the Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) is being established to facilitate problem-solving and educate teachers by
providing the necessary tools.  Jennifer Shepard, Director of School Improvement and Professional Learning, indicated there are
twelve personnel on the K-12 literacy team for support.

5. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on March 7, 2024

March-7-2024-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted that the Neola contract, if approved on the March agenda, would allow the process of policy revision to
begin in April.  Mr. Blocker will be attending the policy workshops along with designated staff and recommends the two-year contract
option to align with the anticipated length of the process.

Mr. Broskie also pointed out the job descriptions contained on the personnel consent agenda that correlate with several of the
proposed new allocations.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments

6. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, thanked the board for its patience as business is addressed and extended appreciation to
Mrs. Hanson for her work on the library media book policy.

School Board Comments

7. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper requested that focus be given for media specialists to begin purchasing books again.  Mr. Broskie indicated that once
clear community standards are established and adopted, purchasing may resume.  Replacement books and research materials may
be purchased immediately.

Adjournment  (1:30 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools Board Chair

Page 106 of 402

DRAFT



Date: Mar 07 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. High School Band and Advanced Guitar Class, Justin Coker and David Golden, Music
Teachers)

Invocation  (Pastor Greg Larson, First Baptist Church Keystone Heights)

Pledge of Allegiance  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Outstanding 2023 - 2024 School Volunteers

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie recognized the 2023-2024 Outstanding School Volunteers as follows:

Tyler Davies, Outstanding Youth Volunteer (Orange Park High)
Jaime Russell, Outstanding Volunteer (Middleburg High)
David Everington, Outstanding Senior Volunteer (Doctors Inlet Elementary)

2. Recognition of 2023-2024 School Related Employee of the Year Teacher of the Year, and Rookie of the Year

Minutes:

Gi Teevan, Michael Rathjen, and Terry Hicks, Executive Committee, Clay Education Foundation, recognized employees of the year as
follows:

Robin Campbell, Teacher of the Year (WJH)
Philip Turturro, Support Related Employee of the Year (DIS)
Allison Sanders, Rookie Teacher of the Year (KHE)

3. Clay Education Foundation Recognition of Mrs. Bolla, Board Member

Minutes:

Gi Teevan, Michael Rathjen, Jennifer Young, and Terry Hicks, Executive Committee, Clay County Education Foundation, recognized
Mary Bolla, District 2 Board Member for her service to Clay Education Foundation over the past eight (8) years.

Presenters  (None)

School Showcase  (Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. High School, Laurie Burke, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

4. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:
Page 107 of 402

DRAFT



Evelyn D. Hillman 
Shannon Hube 
Holly Bishop 
Constance Higginbotham
Bruce Friedman
Judith Chapple 
Adam Warren 
Tanya Kacsan

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

5. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A 03072024.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action A

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Michele Hanson
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

6. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Special Action B - 03072024.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action B

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

7. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Special Action C - 03072024.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action C

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Erin Skipper
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye

Page 108 of 402

DRAFT



Erin Skipper - Aye

8. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action D.

9. D5 - Human Resources Special Action E

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action E.

10. D6 - Human Resources Special Action F

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action F.

Business Affairs

11. D7 - 2024-2025 Allocation Package Pending Board Approval

2024-25 Allocation Plan Pending Board Approval 03-07-24.pdf

2024-25 Allocation Plan - Post Workshop Revisions.pdf

Motion
Motion to Approve 2024-2025 Allocation Package

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Michele Hanson
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

12. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 23, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 1,
2024

2024 Feb 1 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Jan 23 Board Workshop.pdf

2024 Feb 1 Regular Meeting.pdf

13. C2 - Proclamation #24-12, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Proclamation 24-12 2024 Clay County Fair.pdf

Information Technology Services

14. C3 - Endpoint and Network Security

240127 GovConnect (SentinelOne Products).pdf (Confidential)

Executed 240127 SentinelOne.pdf

Human Resources

15. C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda
Page 109 of 402

DRAFT



Personnel Consent Agenda_03 07 2024.pdf

16. C5 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2024-2025

2024-2025 District Bargaining Team Members.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

17. C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

LAE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

OPE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

DOE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

18. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

March 2024 Student Travel.pdf

19. C8 - Proposed AMIkids-Clay County Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

AMIkids-Clay County 2024-2025 School Calendar.pdf

20. C9 - Proposed PACE Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

Pace Clay 2024-2025 Academic Calendar.pdf

21. C10 - School Improvement Plan Approval

SJCFI.pdf

SJCOP.pdf

Instruction-Adult Education

22. C11 - Memorandum of Understanding between School Board of Clay County and Clay County Sheriff's Office

MOU School Board of Clay Cty and Clay County Sheriff's Office.pdf

Executed MOU_CCSO and CCDS.pdf

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

23. C12 - Approval to Advertise Revisions to the CHALLENGED MATERIALS POLICY- RECONSIDERATION OR REVIEW OF
LIBRARY MATERIALS

Legal Advertisement Notice of PH for Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials.pdf

04.2024 Proposed Challenged Materials Policy-Reconsideration or Review of Library Materials.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

24. C13 - Proclamation #24-13 to Establish School Social Work Week

2024 School Social Work Week Proclamation.pdf

Business Affairs

25. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

03.07.24 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

26. C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2024

January 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

January 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

27. C16 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2024

23-24 Budget Amendment January 2024.pdf

Page 110 of 402

DRAFT



Business Affairs-Property

28. C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

29. C18 - Contract Renewal - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award

30. C19 - BID Award

31. C20 - Contract Renewal - Independent Auditing Services

240134 Purvis Gray Renewal 19-BA-125.pdf

240134 Purvis Gray_signature pages.pdf

32. C21 - Contract - Neola

240124 NEOLA Contract to be signed 3.4.2025.pdf

Operations-Facilities

33. C22 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.7.24

34. C23 - Middleburg High School Restroom Renovations Contract Award

Contract for MHS Restroom Renovations

35. C24 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Wilkinson Junior High School Fire Alarm
Replacement

36. C25 - Lakeside Junior High School Restroom/Locker Room Renovations Contract Award

LSJ Restroom.Locker Room Renovations Contract.pdf

37. C26 - Classroom Addition Oakleaf Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

CCSD OLJ Classroom Addition PMC Signed.pdf

38. C27 - Classroom Addition Lake Asbury Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

CCSD LAJ Classroom Addition - CM Contract PMC Signed.pdf

39. C28 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

FISH Certification 2024.pdf

40. C29 - Clay High School Parking Lot Renovation/Redesign Contract Award

CHS Parking Lot Renovation Contract.pdf

41. C30 - Change Order #3 for Clay High School Gym Renovations

CO #3 CHS Gym Renovations.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

42. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson noted that she and the district have been taking great care in developing a rubric that reflects community standards and
will provide criteria re the purchasing of books, will provide guidance in the removal of inappropraite books based on community
standards, and will guide individuals challenging books to ensure understanding of community standards.

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, advised that the proposed policy is consistent with Florida statute and ensures there is
informed consent and protection of parental rights. 

Mrs. Hanson stated that informed consent means that parents are told what is known about the school libraries and that students are
not allowed to check out books without informed parental consent.  She has requested technology assistance via a form that would be
in the parent portal for their required completion prior to a student stepping into a library, making parents aware of the possibility of

Page 111 of 402

DRAFT



their student finding a book with inappropriate content.  She stressed the need to spend time on making a concerted effort to clean up
the libraries by reviewing all books.

Mrs. Skipper requested clarification re the ability of students to gain access to libraries on the first day of school, noting the previously
discussed levels of access being offered but stating that parents must give informed consent and be aware of what their child may
find in the library.  Mrs. Hanson stated that parents must provide informed consent with the understanding that it is not known if all
inappropriate books have been found and may still be in libraries.  Mrs. Gilhousen pointed out that the questionable books found have
been at the secondary level where media is no longer a class and students will not be taken by a teacher to the libraries.

Mr. Broskie stated that, at the conclusion of the workshop, it was his understanding that there are four (4) different types of access
proposed from which parents may choose.  Ideally the students will have parental permission forms but, if the student does not have
that form, they will have general access to check out unflagged books.  Mrs. Hanson indicated general access should only be with
parent permission and informed consent.  Mrs. Gilhousen noted this decision is a procedural one that can be worked out at the
appropriate time.  Mrs. Skipper requested and received assurance from Mr. Blocker that the policy is consistent with the law and that
the delivery of that consent is a procedural issue.

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Erin Skipper
Second: Mary Bolla
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

CCEA Update  (Heather Weaver)

CESPA Update  (None)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

43. Superintendent's Update

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Schools of the Month
Superintendent's Super Students of the Month
February's Highlights
Art in Our Schools Month
Upcoming Events

Mr. Broskie expressed appreciation to the board for their good intent and work on the book policy.

School Board Attorney Remarks

44. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, stated that there will be a board workshop and a shade meeting on 3/26/2024. 

He further indicated that work continues on finalizing the operating agreement with the Clay County Sheriff's Office and that there will
be additional agreements for long-range funding.  Agreements will also be developed for the charter schools which will require both
the charter school boards and CCSB to approve and work out a funding structure. 

School Board Member Remarks

45. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Page 112 of 402

DRAFT



Mrs. Clark regrets the amount of time spent discussing books and indicated she would like to talk about how to improve literacy
comprehension.  She wants students to have access to the libraries but noted Mrs. Hanson has brought out that books have not been
reviewed for some years and vendors have sent inappropriate materials.  She indicated this is not an issue of trust but of setting a
policy and being able to work on a procedure for the best interests of students.  She noted the recent Niche report indicating the safe
and affordable community offered by Clay County as well as the excellent schools.

Mrs. Hanson commented on a speaker she states she heard at an FSBA conference who shared a study reflecting that what makes
an educational community trust a school board is vigorous discourse at meetings.  To that end, she requested workshop materials be
made available sooner so she can analyze and ask informed questions re agenda items.  Mrs. Skipper also supported receiving
workshop presentations ahead of time to engage in more robust conversation.

Mrs. Gilhousen set forth the possibility of holding workshops a few days later to allow board members time to review all pertinent
materials.  Mr. Broskie indicated that he would provide a document outlining recurring large items to enable the board to be able to
read the current version prior to addressing proposed revisions.

Mrs. Skipper thanked Mrs. Hanson and those who worked alongside her for their efforts on the media policy.  She also wished a
happy birthday to Coach Benton at Clay Hill Elementary.

Mrs. Bolla noted her desire to represent students as a board member, stressing the importance of being present and providing
students a chance to shine at the many invitations received to attend school events.  She recently visited a Clay Virtual Academy
teacher and was able to observe the virtual academy labs that have dual enrollment and push into the secondary schools to help
students gain credits in a variety of ways.  She attended Oakleaf Jazz Night and a mock wedding event hosted by Fleming Island
High hospitality program students.  She visited a 2nd grade classroom at Spring Park Elementary that portrayed a wax museum of
Black American history people, sharing the representation and facts of various Black American people from a 1st person perspective. 
She also enjoyed her first Battle of the Books this year at Orange Park Elementary.

Adjournment  (8:02 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 113 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda - April 4 2024.pdf

Page 114 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-april-4-2024.pdf


Page 115 of 402

DRAFT



Page 116 of 402

DRAFT



Page 117 of 402

DRAFT



Page 118 of 402

DRAFT



Page 119 of 402

DRAFT



Page 120 of 402

DRAFT



Page 121 of 402

DRAFT



Page 122 of 402

DRAFT



Page 123 of 402

DRAFT



Page 124 of 402

DRAFT



Page 125 of 402

DRAFT



Page 126 of 402

DRAFT



Page 127 of 402

DRAFT



Page 128 of 402

DRAFT



Page 129 of 402

DRAFT



Page 130 of 402

DRAFT



Page 131 of 402

DRAFT



Page 132 of 402

DRAFT



Page 133 of 402

DRAFT



Page 134 of 402

DRAFT



Page 135 of 402

DRAFT



Page 136 of 402

DRAFT



Page 137 of 402

DRAFT



Page 138 of 402

DRAFT



Page 139 of 402

DRAFT



Page 140 of 402

DRAFT



Page 141 of 402

DRAFT



Page 142 of 402

DRAFT



Page 143 of 402

DRAFT



Page 144 of 402

DRAFT



Page 145 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2024-25

Description
Supplemental allocations are proposed each April for the upcoming school year. Such allocations are intended to support student
needs in both academic and athletic settings. Since supplemental positions require additional responsibilities outside of an
employee’s contracted position and/or responsibilities outside of an employee’s contracted work hours, they receive
compensation beyond their regular salary.
The increase to supplemental compensation from the 2023-2024 school year is largely due to the addition of a full elementary
supplemental allocation package to Spring Park Elementary.
Due to new legislation, new state standards, higher rates of teacher turnover, along with an increased number of alternate
certified teachers, Professional Development has added a coaching supplement for all District Coaches (30 in total).  District
Coaches have increased responsibilities that will extend outside their 7.5 hour work day.  The new District Coach supplement
will help ensure the professional learning needs of novice teachers are adequately met and will increase the District retention
rate.

Gap Analysis
The following list comprises various transactions that require the recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the
School Board.  The supplemental list includes academic and athletic supplements.

Previous Outcomes
Cost analysis for the past seven (7) years: 

2014-2015 Academic $1,547,000.00 / Athletic $1,210,861.00 = $2,758,561.00-
2015-2016 Academic $1,555,313.00 / Athletic $1,210,861.00 = $2,766,174.00-
2016-2017 Academic $1,556,323.00 / Athletic $1,213,311.00 = $2,769,634.00-
2017-2018 Academic $1,576,063.00 / Athletic $1,218,858.00 = $2,794,921.00-
2018-2019 Academic $1,614,177.00 / Athletic $1,223,058.00 = $2,837,235.00-
2019-2020 Academic $1,633,848.00 / Athletic $1,223,058.00 = $2,856,906.00-
2020-2021 Academic $1,665,383.00 / Athletic $1,261,367.00 = $2,926,750.00-
2021-2022 Academic $1,730,918.00 / Athletic $1,266,652.00 = $2,997,570.00-
2022-2023 Academic $1,735,068.00 / Athletic $1,269,455.00 = $3,003,524.00-
2023-2024 Academic $1,868,699.00 / Athletic $1,275,455.00 = $3,144,154.00-

Expected Outcomes
Supplements will be distributed sufficiently to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1 - Student Sucess
Goal 2 - Talent Recruitment, Devlopment and Retention
Goal 5 - Fiscal and Operational Efficiency

Recommendation
Approve the supplements as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Cost of Academic Supplements: $XXXXXXXX / Cost of Athletic Supplements: $XXXXXXXXXX Total: $XXXXXXXXXX

Page 146 of 402

DRAFT



Review Comments

Attachments

Page 147 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2024-2025 School Year

Description
The attached reappointment documents reflect school-based and district instructional and support employees that have cleared
any holds and have been submitted for reappointment during the 2023-2024 school year.  Florida Statutes 1012.27 and 1012.22
outlines the duties and responsibilities of the Superintendent of Schools and the School Board regarding reappointments of
employees.  This action fulfills these requirements.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Each year the Clay County School board has approved the reappointment of Instructional and Support Personnel.

Expected Outcomes
Reappointment of recommended PSC, CC, AC instructional personnel and reappointments of multi-year contract and AC non-
instructional personnel will be approved.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2 - Talent Recruitment, Development and Retention

Recommendation
Approval of 2024-2025 reappointment agenda as presented for instructional and non-instructional personnel.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The financial impact would be the total salary and benefits of the reappointed employees in the 2024-2025 budget.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 148 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Proclamation #24-14 to Establish May 6 - 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday, May 7,
2024, as Teacher Appreciation Day

Description
Teacher Appreciation Week and National Teacher Appreciation Day are dedicated annually to the celebration of teachers
worldwide.  At the local level, Clay County Schools will honor the men and women who lend their passion and skills to educate
the children of Clay County.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish May 6 - 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County and Tuesday, May 7, 2024, as National Teacher
Appreciation Day.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Teacher Appreciation Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

Page 149 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/teacher-appreciation-proclamation-2023-2024.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 24-14

WHEREAS, the dedicated teachers of Clay County serve the families of 39,000 students through
building partnerships with them and their communities; and

WHEREAS, they commit tremendous amounts of time preparing meaningful and engaging lessons
while also creating safe and welcoming classroom environments; and

WHEREAS, our teachers serve as role models for students and the community, exemplifying qualities
all citizens possess, while encouraging childrens’ interests, growing their belief in
themselves, and helping them realize the opportunities that lie ahead; and

WHEREAS, the future of our county, state, and country depends upon delivering a world-class
education to our students, thus maintaining a productive citizenry; and

WHEREAS, effective teachers have a lasting influence on the lives of their students, families, and
community members as they encourage our children to mature and prosper which in
turn, deepens the strength of our community, and they deserve our gratitude and
appreciation; and

WHEREAS, our community recognizes, lifts up, and celebrates Clay County District Schools’
teachers in their work to motivate students to forge ahead and take advantage of all the
possibilities afforded them.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
proclaim May 6 – 10, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation Week and May 7, 2024, as Teacher Appreciation
Day in Clay County.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th day of April,
2024.

ATTEST:

____________________________________ ____________________________________
David S. Broskie Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Page 150 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Proclamation #24-15 to Establish April 22 - 26, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 24,
2024, as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County.

Description
Administrative Professionals' Week and Administrative Professionals' Day are observed annually as a way to show appreciation
to support and clerical staff.  Celebrated worldwide, Administrative Professionals' Day has become one of the largest workplace
observances.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish April 22 - 26, 2024, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 24, 2024, as Administrative
Professionals' Day (formerly known as Secretary's Day) in Clay County.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Administrative Professionals Proclamation 2023-2024.pdf

Page 151 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/administrative-professionals-proclamation-2023-2024.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 24-15

WHEREAS, April 22 – 26, 2024, has been designated Administrative Professionals’ Week; and

WHEREAS, April 24, 2024, has been designated as Administrative Professionals’ Day; and

WHEREAS, since 1952, this occasion has been observed as a means to show gratitude and
recognition for all administrative support personnel; and

WHEREAS, our administrative professionals are indispensable in the seamless orchestration of daily
operations at our schools and district offices through their tireless dedication; and

WHEREAS, the work of administrative professionals is built upon specialized knowledge in a
multitude of areas, encompassing customer service, computer applications, and people
skills, while simultaneously assisting with diverse duties around campuses and the
community, giving them opportunities to utilize their creativity to maintain a well-run
organization; and

WHEREAS, administrative professionals are valued ambassadors, and are often the first Clay
County District Schools member the public encounters, thus beginning an important
two-way relationship between our schools and the community; and

WHEREAS, by exhibiting exuberant courtesy and top-tier professionalism,
administrative professionals in Clay County District Schools are crucial to implementing
the district’s vision and mission to cultivate well-rounded citizens prepared to benefit
from the boundless possibilities for achievement they will experience.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
proclaim April 22 – 26, 2024 as Administrative Professionals’ Week and April 24, 2024, as
Administrative Professionals’ Day in Clay County.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th day of April
2024.

ATTEST:

_________________________________ ___________________________________
David S. Broskie Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Page 152 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 153 of 402

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

District Students
3/20 -
3/23/24

Orlando, FL
FRC
Robotics

Robotics competition

District Students 5/5 - 5/7/24
Tallahassee,
FL

Delegates
of Clay
History Day

Academic competition

Oakleaf Junior
High

2/11 -
2/15/25

Washington,
DC and
Philadephia

Pre-AICE Tour to experience US History and Civics

Oakleaf Junior
High

6/10 -
6/14/24

Orlando, FL FFA Leadership conference

Clay High School
7/18 -
7/20/24

Webber
International
Univ.

Football
Team

Football camp

Keystone
Heights High
School

2/24 -
2/26/24

Wewahitchka,
FL

Boys
Wrestling

FHSAA Regional meet

Keystone
Heights High
School

6/10 -
6/14/24

Hawthorne,
FL

AJROTC AJROTC Leadership camp

Middleburg High
School

6/24 -
6/29/24

Camp
Blanding, FL

NJROTC Basic leadership training

Middleburg High
School

6/3 - 6/7/24 Rutledge, GA
NJROTC
Orienteerin
g Cadets

Advanced orienteering training

Middleburg High
School

6/8 -
6/15/24

Gainesville,
GA

NJROTC
4-5 cadets

Leadership Academy

Orange Park
High School

1/16 -
1/22/25

Washington,
DC

OPH
Students

To attend the Presidential Inauguration

Ridgeview High
School

4/24 -
4/27/24

Key West, FL
NJROTC
Cadets

Tour NAS Key West

Ridgeview High
School

6/21 -
6/23/24

Tallahassee,
FL

Girls
Basketball

Basketball camp

Ridgeview High
School

3/30/24 Columbia, SC Football  Benedict College Football Junior Day

         

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Page 154 of 402

DRAFT



Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

April 2024 Student Travel.pdf

Page 155 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2024-student-travel_1.pdf


Page 156 of 402

DRAFT



Page 157 of 402

DRAFT



Page 158 of 402

DRAFT



Page 159 of 402

DRAFT



Page 160 of 402

DRAFT



Page 161 of 402

DRAFT



Page 162 of 402

DRAFT



Page 163 of 402

DRAFT



Page 164 of 402

DRAFT



Page 165 of 402

DRAFT



Page 166 of 402

DRAFT



Page 167 of 402

DRAFT



Page 168 of 402

DRAFT



Page 169 of 402

DRAFT



Page 170 of 402

DRAFT



Page 171 of 402

DRAFT



Page 172 of 402

DRAFT



Page 173 of 402

DRAFT



Page 174 of 402

DRAFT



Page 175 of 402

DRAFT



Page 176 of 402

DRAFT



Page 177 of 402

DRAFT



Page 178 of 402

DRAFT



Page 179 of 402

DRAFT



Page 180 of 402

DRAFT



Page 181 of 402

DRAFT



Page 182 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Proposed Florida Youth Challenge Academy Student/Employee Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

Description
Florida Youth Challenge Academy developed an employee and student calendar for the 2024-2025 school year. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended Florida Youth Challenge Academy Employee and Student
Calendar for the 2024-2025 school year.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Director K12 Secondary Ed., treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

FLYCA Student-Employee 2024-2025 Calendar.pdf

Page 183 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/flyca-student-employee-2024-2025-calendar.pdf


Page 184 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - 2024 Secondary Summer Programs Calendars Revised

Description
 
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Prior years' Proposed Summer Program calendars were Board approved and posted on the district website. 

Expected Outcomes
All student calendars require School Board approval to establish school schedules for students and employees. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
 
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended Revised Secondary Summer Programs Calendar 2024 for
students and employees. 

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed,  treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Secondary Summer Programs Calendar 2024 Revised.pdf

Page 185 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/secondary-summer-programs-calendar-2024-revised.pdf


Page 186 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - 2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar revised

Description
 
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Prior years' Proposed Summer Program calendars were Board approved and posted on the district website. 

Expected Outcomes
All student calendars require School Board approval to establish school schedules for students and employees. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
 
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended Revised VPK, 3rd Grade Summer CampCalendar 2024 for
students and employees. 

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed,  treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp Calendar Revised.pdf

Page 187 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-vpk-3rd-grade-summer-camp-calendar-revised.pdf


Page 188 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - CCDS-Adult & Community Education (ClayACE) and Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) MOU for Post-
Secondary Adult Pre-Apprenticeship Program

Description
ETAJ has received federal grant funding to expand their adult pre-apprenticeship program into Clay County. This MOU would
allow for ClayACE and ETAJ to partner together and offer a state registered electrical pre-apprenticeship program to the adult
citizens of Clay and the surrounding counties at no-cost to the school district. CCDS-ACE will manage the program and provide
classroom space. ETAJ will provide the instructor, curriculum, technology, supplies and materials (detailed outline of cost is
included in MOU).
The goal of this partnership is to help post-secondary pre-apprenticeship students enrolled in this program achieve proficiency in
the ETAJ curriculum, enhancing their chances of securing a preferred interview and advanced placement in the ETAJ
apprenticeship program upon graduation or successful program completion.
 

Gap Analysis
This will establish a partnership between ClayACE and ETAJ to provide an adult pre-apprenticeship program registered through
the State of Florida Apprenticeship Registration Agency.

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this MOU will allow ClayACE to expand education & training offerings to include an adult pre-apprenticeship
program with ETAJ.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3:  Family and Community Engagement
3.2:  Collaborate with parents and community partners to increase stakeholder participation within our district. 
3.3: Expand community partnerships to increase student learning and extracurricular opportunities.

Recommendation
School Board Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between The School Board of Clay County (Clay ACE) and
Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) for a Post-Secondary Adult Education Pre-Apprenticeship.
 

Contact
Rachel Walker, Coordinator of Workforce Development, 904-336-4457, rachel.walker@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

240120 Elec Training Alliance MOU with ACE.pdf

Page 189 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240120-elec-training-alliance-mou-with-ace.pdf


PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
  Contract #______________________ 

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00 

Date Submitted: 
Name of Contract Initiator:      Telephone #: 
School/Dept Submitting Contract:     Cost Center # 
Vendor Name: 
Contract Title: 
Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □   Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 
Contract Term:    Renewal Option(s): 
Contract Cost: 
 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT -  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO
 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE  (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract) - When using the Addendum A, this Statement MUST BE included in the body of the Contract: 
               “The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or 
                conditions herein stated.” 
______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
               COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A- or better. 

   General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
   Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
  Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 

______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 
CONTRACT REVIEWED BY: COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department    

Review Date 

School Board Attorney   

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS  DATE:______________________ 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

240120

Defer to Attorney: the changes to SBCC Addendum A and all other T&C in MOU

N_______o Cost - N______o Purchasi________ng _________________(Shared document with Budget (Kyl________________e S______eymore)___________ 
______________________________________________________________________

1/25/2024

Rachel Walker 904-336-4457

Clay County Adult & Community Ed. 9008

Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJAX)

Memorandum of Understanding

None

By Elaine at 3:26 pm, Jan 25, 2024

By Bertha Staefe at 1:38 pm, Feb 05, 2024

JPS

2/19/24

Appears as though ETAJ will be donating money with provisions for us to allocate. I reviewed their MOUs

with other Counties, and it is similar to this document. I do not think we need Addendum A since they

are donating money and goods to the school and providing no other services.. 

Similiar to 190137

Property over $1,000 will need to be processed with Property Control Department. 
Need to add #10 Addendum A and address comments.

2/20/24 Potential risk, need T&C that address at the least liability. What if the 
equipment is bad and someone gets hurt? ETAJ removed the highlighted clauses from 
our Addendum A, so what clauses do we need them to add back in?  -BFS (D. Broskie)12:28 pm, Feb 20, 2024 By Bertha Staefe at 12:59 pm, Feb 22, 2024

Page 190 of 402

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
     (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 
             

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department. 
    Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to 
    Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
    will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 

    Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
    Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes: 
    Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR 
    Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 
    If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 

 Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO. 
   Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 

    The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator 

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 

All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate
entry as part of the monthly financial report.

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.

3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized
Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals.

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was
previously approved by the Board.

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 191 of 402

DRAFT



Barton-Weeks, Elaine <elaine.bartonweeks@myoneclay.net>

MOU
1 message

Daniel Van Sickle <dvansickle@etajax.org> Tue, Jan 23, 2024 at 11:14 AM
To: elaine.bartonweeks@myoneclay.net

Hello Elaine. It was a pleasure speaking with you last week.

I have attached a proposed Amendment “A” for your review.

Our Trustees feel the existing document treats us more like a company performing work from the County which is not the case.

Please pass along the following to the appropriate agency.

The ETA of JAX received a grant to create an adult electrical Pre-Apprenticeship in Clay County focused on Clay County residents.

Enrollment is to be approx. 20 students

To facilitate this, the ETA of JAX will be DONATING to Clay County:

10 new computers valued at $1070. 00 each (10@$1070=$10,700.00)

Consumable material up to $12,800.00

New Transformer Trainer valued at $7,100.00

New AC/DC Trainer valued at $12,000.00

New Motor Control Trainer valued at $15,000.00

Books and learning material valued at $500 per student (20@500=$10,000.00)

Salary for the Instructor (that Clay County approves) valued at $8,000.00

The ETA of JAX will not receive ANY good, services, or compensation from Clay County.

The ETA of JAX will not perform ANY work in and for Clay County for this Program.

At the completion of the program, Clay County retains all equipment and material.

Basically, the ETA of JAX want to donate $75,600.00 to Clay County.

Please feel free to reach out to me if you have any questions.

Danny Van Sickle

Training Director

4951 Richard Street

Jacksonville ,Florida

32207

904-737-7533

ACE must coordinate with Property Control
to identify all property of $1000.00

Page 192 of 402

DRAFT



Memorandum of Understanding
Between

The School Board of Clay County/
Clay County Adult & Community Education (Clay ACE) and
Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) for a
Post-Secondary Adult Education Pre-Apprenticeship

Recitals
WHEREAS Clay County Adult & Community Education program and ETAJ desire to
promote the advancement of a registered electrical apprenticeship program that is
beneficial to the respective institutions and that furthers the education of electricians in
the community as a public good. This agreement creates a partnership to establish a
program for supplemental instruction so that students enrolled in the Clay ACE
HVAC/Electricity courses within Clay County Adult & Community Education may
pursue mastery of the ETAJ curriculum in order to earn a preferred interview and
advanced placement into the ETAJ apprenticeship program upon graduation or
successful completion of the program.

Witnesseth
IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual objectives, the parties do agree as follows:

1. ETAJ’s role as a Program Sponsor includes:
a. Provide an ETAJ Instructor for a total of 8 hours of Instruction any time

during the school year as needed at the Clay ACE facility to support
student learning goals.

b. Provide all consumable material used in "hands on" applications.
c. Agrees not to hold the Clay County School Superintendent, School Board,

and school board employees harmless from any liability for injuries or
damages that may arise from any accidents that may occur at the ETAJ
facility.

d. Maintaining status as a registered apprenticeship program by the State of
Florida Apprenticeship Registration Agency.

e. Give preference for Job Placement opportunities for each applicant upon
completion of the program.

f. Complete administrative responsibilities within a timely manner, i.e.,
completion and submission of certification rosters, student's grades and
other reports as assigned by Clay ACE.

2. The Clay ACE’s role as the educational institution program includes the following
program management and support responsibilities for the cohort of students
choosing to pursue the ETAJ program:

1
Page 193 of 402

DRAFT



a. This volunteer cohort will follow ETAJ's course outcomes, grading scale,
and meet the minimum seat time requirement for a First Year Apprentice
level class.

b. Agrees to not hold ETAJ liable for any accidents that may occur at the
Clay ACE.

c. Clay ACE will allow adult education students to enter the program.
d. Clay ACE will obtain an appropriate waiver and release of liability form all

students in the program (off-campus form, etc.). The Waiver and Release
of Liability will be executed by a parent, legal guardian of the student, or
the adult education student.

2

3. It is understood the maximum class size will be 25 students.
4. ETAJ prefers students seek employment with our member contractors. They will

strive to place students when positions are available.
5. Completion of the Program will consist of the First Year Curriculum that the

ETAJX has submitted in its standards. This also includes the online and “hands
on" parts of the National Electrical Certification Board First year final exam.

6. Completion of the program will result in a direct interview with the Trustees of the
ETAJ Apprenticeship Committee. At that time, the student may apply for
Advanced Placement into the 2nd year of ETAJ Apprenticeship.

7. Should the student be accepted into the apprenticeship, they will agree to adhere
to all rules and policies of the ETAJ.

8. It is further understood that both parties will work towards a preeminent
apprenticeship program. This may include the establishment of an Electrical
Apprenticeship Certificate. ETAJ will provide successful students with a certificate
at the end of the program.

9. ETAJ and Clay ACE acknowledge that the terms of the relationship, as described herein,
may change from time to time.

Page 194 of 402

DRAFT



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both parties have executed this Memorandum of
Understanding and the signatories on behalf of both parties acknowledge that they have
authority from the respective entities to sign on their behalf.

On behalf of Clay County Adult & Community Education

Kristin Rousseau, Supervisor Date

On behalf of the Clay County School District

David Broskie, Superintendent of Clay County Schools Date

On behalf of the School Board of Clay County

DateAshely Gilhousen, Board Chair

Date

Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville

Daniel Van Sickle Apprenticeship Sponsor

3

Dan VanSicle (Feb 28, 2024 13:29 EST)
Dan VanSicle 02/28/2024

Kristin Rousseau (Feb 29, 2024 10:40 EST)
Kristin Rousseau 02/29/2024

Page 195 of 402

DRAFT



Jacksonville Electrical Joint Apprenticeship and Training Committee

Memorandum of Agreement
Daniel “Danny” R. Van Sickle III

Training Director
dvansickle@etajax.org

The Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville (ETAJ) agrees to pay Clay County 
Adult & Community Education (Clay ACE) instructor salary 30 hours per month up to 
6 months. ETAJ agrees to give Clay ACE the following:

ITEM QUANTITY COST TOTAL

Transformer Trainer 1 $7,116.92 $7,116.92

AC/DC Trainer 1 $12,840.00 $12,840.00

Hands-On Motor
Controls Trainer

1 $16,050.00 $16,050.00

Computer 10 $1,070.00 $10,700.00

Tool Bags 10 $350.00 $3,500.00

Book and online
course enrollment

10 $500.00 $5,000.00

Instructor Salary 180 hours $45.02 $8,103.60

Instructor, Social
Security (6.2%)

N/A N/A $502.42

Instructor, Medicare
(1.4%)

N/A N/A $113.45

Instructor, NEBF
(3%)

N/A N/A $243.11

4
Page 196 of 402

DRAFT



Clay ACE agrees to inventory all books and equipment and keep records on file for 
auditing purposes.

Clay ACE agrees to teach 10 registered pre-apprentices at the Adult Community 
Education Center beginning in April 2024 and completing October 2024.

Daniel Van Sickle, Training Director
Electrical Training Alliance of Jacksonville

Representative, Clay County Adult & Community Education 
Kristin Rousseau, Supervisor ACE

4951 Richard St. • Jacksonville, Fl 32207 • Office: 904.737.7533 • Fax: 904.737.7534 • www.etajax.org
Registered Apprenticeship Since 1945

5

Dan VanSicle (Feb 28, 2024 13:29 EST)
Dan VanSicle

Kristin Rousseau (Feb 29, 2024 10:40 EST)
Kristin Rousseau

Page 197 of 402

DRAFT



240120 Elec Training Alliance MOU with ACE -
Copy
Final Audit Report 2024-02-29

Created: 2024-02-28

By: Elaine Barton-Weeks (elaine.bartonweeks@myoneclay.net)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAA1NaQg2aUc0vkJo9luYIWvuFEzHdRZgqN

"240120 Elec Training Alliance MOU with ACE - Copy" History
Document created by Elaine Barton-Weeks (elaine.bartonweeks@myoneclay.net)
2024-02-28 - 3:42:07 PM GMT- IP address: 96.5.241.169

Document emailed to Dan VanSicle (dvansickle@etajax.org) for signature
2024-02-28 - 3:42:14 PM GMT

Document emailed to Kristin Rousseau (kristin.rousseau@myoneclay.net) for signature
2024-02-28 - 3:42:14 PM GMT

Email viewed by Dan VanSicle (dvansickle@etajax.org)
2024-02-28 - 6:22:39 PM GMT- IP address: 96.75.28.42

Document e-signed by Dan VanSicle (dvansickle@etajax.org)
Signature Date: 2024-02-28 - 6:29:15 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 96.75.28.42

Email viewed by Kristin Rousseau (kristin.rousseau@myoneclay.net)
2024-02-29 - 3:04:07 PM GMT- IP address: 142.190.93.82

Document e-signed by Kristin Rousseau (kristin.rousseau@myoneclay.net)
Signature Date: 2024-02-29 - 3:40:54 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 142.190.93.82

Agreement completed.
2024-02-29 - 3:40:54 PM GMT

Page 198 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University (JU)

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University for JU students to participate in field and
clinical experiences under the direction of a qualified mentor educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns from Jacksonville University cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would
thereby prevent potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 30 Colleges/Universities, and does not have a current agreement
with JU.  This agreement would allow teacher candidates from JU to be placed in Clay.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of teacher candidates provides real-world experiences to better prepare them for the rigors of teaching in the Prek-12
educational setting.  JU is currently requesting the placement of 1 student, and this agreement will allow for future interns to be
placed over the duration of the contract period.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Talent Recruitment, Development, and Retention
 
Strategy 1.1: Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and Jacksonville University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

240118 Jacksonville University.pdf

Page 199 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240118-jacksonville-university.pdf


240118

3 year renewal in writing

No Cost - No Purchasing

Defer to Attorney: the need for SBCC Addendum A & the rest of the T&C -BFS 

By Elaine at 3:05 pm, Jan 25, 2024

By Bertha Staefe at 1:36 pm, Feb 05, 2024

Indemnification is in the contract. Additional T&C should not be necessary
JPS

2/16/24

Page 200 of 402

DRAFT



Page 201 of 402

DRAFT



Page 202 of 402

DRAFT



Page 203 of 402

DRAFT



Page 204 of 402

DRAFT



Page 205 of 402

DRAFT



Page 206 of 402

DRAFT



Page 207 of 402

DRAFT



A+
N/R

Need to be listed as additionally insured

Page 208 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University (ASU)

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University for ASU students to participate in field
and clinical experiences under the direction of a qualified mentor educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns from Arizona State University cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would
thereby prevent potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 30 Colleges/Universities, and does not have a current agreement
with ASU.  This agreement would allow teacher candidates from ASU to be placed in Clay.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of teacher candidates provides real-world experiences to better prepare them for the rigors of teaching in the Prek-12
educational setting.  ASU is currently requesting the placement of 1 student, and this agreement will allow for future interns to be
placed over the duration of the contract period.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Talent Recruitment, Development, and Retention
 
Strategy 1.1: Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arizona State University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

240130 Arizona State Univ.pdf

Page 209 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240130-arizona-state-univ.pdf


240130

No Cost

See comments about date & District contact person

Defer all other T & C to Attorney to include liability of Intern student

By Elaine at 11:13 am, Feb 15, 2024

By Bertha Staefe at 8:54 am, Feb 16, 2024

Terms and conditions are acceptable in this agreement. However, it appears that there are missing page(s) to the agreement details.  

JPS

3/4 4 of 4 pages 

Page 210 of 402

DRAFT



Jennifer Shepard
Supv / PD

jennifer.shepard@myoneclay.net

Page 211 of 402

DRAFT



Ashley Gilhousen
SBCC Board Chair

Page 212 of 402

DRAFT



Page 213 of 402

DRAFT



Page 214 of 402

DRAFT



Page 215 of 402

DRAFT



Page 216 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proclamation #24-16 to Establish April, 2024 as School Library Month in Clay County

Description
Each year, citizens of Clay County take time to recognize the programs, services, and resources provided by school libraries.
This celebratory month provides opportunities across the county to highlight school library contributions to education.
School library programs prepare students for lifelong learning, make a measurable difference in student academic achievement,
and enhance their reading enjoyment. Additionally, School Library Month coincides with National Library Week, which
highlights the resources and contributions of all types of libraries.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board establish the month of April, 2024 as School Library Media Month in Clay County. 

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation-April-2024-School-Library-Media-Month.pdf

Page 217 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-april-2024-school-library-media-month.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION #24-16 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, school library programs promote literacy and the enjoyment of reading, and are an important 
                asset in the education of Florida’s youth; and 
 
WHEREAS, school library programs significantly contribute to student achievement by providing  
               instructional support resources and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, school libraries provide access to information in a variety of formats within the school, as well  
                as digital resources outside of the school; and 
 
WHEREAS, learning to become effective users of information and ideas is essential as Florida’s youth  
 prepare for their futures; and 
 
WHEREAS, promoting competencies in using new and emerging technologies is an integral part of   
 school library programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, school librarians are instructional partners and consultants in the teaching and learning   
 process.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby extend 
greetings and best wishes to all observing April 2024 as School Library Month in Clay County.  
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th day of April, 2024. 
        
 

 
ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________                          ____________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida       
      
 
 

Page 218 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Proclamation #24-17, National School Nurse Week

Description
National School Nurse Week has been established to foster a better understanding of the role of school nurses in the educational
setting. This year's National School Nurse Week, May 6-12, 2024, will recognize the vital role that school nurses have played in
improving the health and well-being of our county's children through this Resolution. This year per the National Association of
School Nurses we are recognizing school nurses by the students we serve students are the future and by investing in them today
we are ensuring our world for tomorrow. 

Gap Analysis
This Resolution will promote the School Board of Clay County's goal of providing a safe and healthy environment for students. 

Previous Outcomes
Proclamation #23-14; National School Nurse Day, May 6-12, 2023 approved.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize National School Nurses Week as a time to identify and honor the dedicated
employees of Student Health Services. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Resolution #24-17 endorsing National School Nurse Week.

Contact
Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate and Culture, laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net, 904-336-9641
Kristin Riebe, Coordinator of Nursing Services, Kristin.riebe@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6884

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Nurses Week Proclamation24 (1).pdf

Page 219 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation24-1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 24-17

NATIONAL SCHOOL NURSE WEEK
May 6-12, 2024

WHEREAS, providing a safe environment for students is the primary goal of Clay County District
Schools; and

WHEREAS, the Clay County District Schools recognize that healthcare professionals strengthen and
facilitate the educational process by improving and protecting the health status of our students; and

WHEREAS, the Clay County District Schools recognize that our nation’s children face an increasing
number of chronic and severe health problems from diabetes to asthma, seizures, obesity, and
depression, as well as other mental and physical health problems. Frequently, the only attention a
child receives is through the school clinic; and

WHEREAS, the Clay County District Schools recognize that health care professional support a large
number of students by intervening with actual and potential health problems; collaborating with others
to build student and family capacity for adaptation, self-management, self-advocacy, and learning;
and

WHEREAS, these activities promoting the health and safety of students are important to the citizens
of Clay County and others throughout the nation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
proclaim May 8, 2024 as National School Nurse Day.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this______day of
__________, 2024.

ATTEST:

_________________________________ ____________________________________
David S. Broskie Ashley Gilhousen , School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Page 220 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 -  Proclamation # 24-18: Month of the Military Child, Purple Up Day April 17, 2024

Description
Proclamation of Month of the Military Child, Purple Up Day: April 17, 2024.  
Month of the Military Child is sponsored by the Department of Defense Military Community and Family Policy and supported
by many other organizations such as the Department of Defense Education Activity (DoDEA).  Purple UP! for Military Kids is a
day for DoDEA communities to wear purple and show support to thank military childen for their strength and sacrifices.  Purple
indicates that all branches of the military are support.  Air Force blue, Army green, Navy blue, Marine red, and Coast Guard blue
are all thought to combine together as a single color: purple.  Purple UP! day is recognized world wide across military
installations on April 15th and locally on April 17th.

Gap Analysis
Military connected students represent 12% of our overall student population, and this event gives us the opportunity to
recognize their service to the country.

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will show appreciation and further support students and families who serve or who have served in
all branches of the military.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Family and Community Engagement
Strategy 2: Collaborate with parents and community partners to increase stakeholder participation within our district.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the proclamation.

Contact
Laura Fogarty, laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net,

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Month of Military Child  Proclamation 2024.docx.pdf

Page 221 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/month-of-military-child-proclamation-2024docx.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION #24-18

WHEREAS, April is designated as the Month of the Military Child by the Department of Defense and
the military community as a special time to recognize and pay tribute to military families and their
dependent children for the their commitment, courage, and support of our Armed Forces; and

WHEREAS, twelve percent of the student population in Clay County District Schools is
military-connected and because these students are a source of great pride to our district, it is rightful
to take time to recognize their contributions to school, community and country; and

WHEREAS, we would like to let our men and women in uniform know that while they are taking care
of us, we are taking care of their children; and

WHEREAS, Air Force blue, Army green, Marine red, Navy blue, and Coast Guard blue are all thought
to combine as a single color, purple;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
honor the sacrifices made by military families in Clay County, especially the dependent children of
military members in service to their country, and extend our gratitude and well wishes for all by
declaring April as Month of the Military Child and celebrating Wednesday, April 17, 2024, as Purple
Up! For Military Kids Day.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th day of April,
2024.

ATTEST:

_________________________________ ____________________________________
David S. Broskie Ashley Gilhousen
Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 222 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2023-2024 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 223 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 224 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Request for the Adoption of Resolution #24-19, Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A

Description
The attached Resolution and related financing documents are necessary in order to authorize the Chair and Superintendent to
proceed with causing the issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A, in an amount not to exceed $36 million
in aggregate principal, in order to finance through a lease-purchase arrangement the construction of two new classroom wings
at Lake Asbury Junior High and Oakleaf Junior High.  The new wings are estimated to cost approximately $36 million and
any remaining balance will be funded from a combination of other capital outlay revenue sources including, but not limited
to: impact fees and local capital  improvement (LCIF) revenues.  The attached Resolution and related documents will
authorize the Chair and Superintendent to take the appropriate steps to cause the issuance of the Certificates of Participation,
Series 2024A in order to properly fund the project account and the related costs of issuance account.

Gap Analysis
The sale of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A, will allow for the construction of two new [classroom wings at
Lake Asbury Junior High and Oakleaf Junior High.
 

Previous Outcomes
NA

Expected Outcomes
 

Approval of Resolution #24-19 Authorizing the Issuance of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approval of the Superintendent's recommendation to approve Resolution No. 24-19 which authorizes the issuance of the
Certificates of Participation, Series 2024A, through a negotiated sale and confirms U.S. Bank National Association as
Trustee. Its adoption also demonstrates the School Board's approval to the following documents and actions which are
attached hereto:
 

Ground Lease of the project sites to the Clay School Board Leasing Corporation, a Florida not-for-profit corporation, and
the lease-purchase of the sites and schools from the corporation,

-

Authorization to execute and deliver the Series 2024A Ground Lease Agreement,-
Authorization to execute and deliver the Lease Schedule No. 2024A,-
Authorization to execute and deliver the Series 2024A Supplemental Trust Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association
as Trustee,

-

Approval of the Assignment of Series 2024A Ground Lease,-
Approval of the Series 2024A Amendment to Assignment of the Lease Agreement,-
Authorization to execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Agreement,-
Authorize the Chairman and Superintendent, or their designee, to execute and deliver the Certificate Purchase Contract, if
certain parameters are satisfied, and all other necessary documents to implement the financing plan and

-

Authorize the Chairman and Superintendent, or their designee, to distribute the Preliminary Offering Statement in a deemed
"final" form and to execute and deliver the Offering Statement.

-

Page 225 of 402

DRAFT



Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent Business Affairs, 904-336-6721 Susan.Legutko@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, 904-336-xxxx, Bryce.Ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Debt service on the Series 2024A Certificates will accrue as of the date of delivery of the Series 2024A Certificates. The first
interest payment is expected to occur on [______], and the debt service will be fully compliant with the requirements of ss.
1011.71(2)(e), Florida Statutes.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 226 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2024

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending February 29, 2024.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
February, 2024.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

February 2024 Monthly Board Property Reports.pdf

February 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

Page 227 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2024-monthly-board-property-reports.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2024-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-50000-to-100000_1.pdf


Page 228 of 402

DRAFT



Page 229 of 402

DRAFT



Page 230 of 402

DRAFT



Page 231 of 402

DRAFT



Page 232 of 402

DRAFT



Page 233 of 402

DRAFT



Page 234 of 402

DRAFT



Page 235 of 402

DRAFT



Page 236 of 402

DRAFT



Page 237 of 402

DRAFT



Page 238 of 402

DRAFT



Page 239 of 402

DRAFT



Page 240 of 402

DRAFT



Page 241 of 402

DRAFT



Page 242 of 402

DRAFT



Page 243 of 402

DRAFT



Page 244 of 402

DRAFT



Page 245 of 402

DRAFT



Page 246 of 402

DRAFT



Page 247 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Budget Amendment Report for February 29, 2024

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for January 2024 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Report_February 29 2024.pdf

Page 248 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-report_february-29-2024.pdf


Page 249 of 402

DRAFT



Page 250 of 402

DRAFT



Page 251 of 402

DRAFT



Page 252 of 402

DRAFT



Page 253 of 402

DRAFT



Page 254 of 402

DRAFT



Page 255 of 402

DRAFT



Page 256 of 402

DRAFT



Page 257 of 402

DRAFT



Page 258 of 402

DRAFT



Page 259 of 402

DRAFT



Page 260 of 402

DRAFT



Page 261 of 402

DRAFT



Page 262 of 402

DRAFT



Page 263 of 402

DRAFT



Page 264 of 402

DRAFT



Page 265 of 402

DRAFT



Page 266 of 402

DRAFT



Page 267 of 402

DRAFT



Page 268 of 402

DRAFT



Page 269 of 402

DRAFT



Page 270 of 402

DRAFT



Page 271 of 402

DRAFT



Page 272 of 402

DRAFT



Page 273 of 402

DRAFT



Page 274 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - NSF Checks

Description
SBE Rule 6A-1.087 requires a written report to the school board covering internal funds which include any notations of any
failure to comply with requirements of Florida Statutes, State Board of Education Regulations, and policies of the school board
and commentary as to financial management and irregularities. This report is being presented and filed as a part of the public
record. After reports were prepared for each of the 42 schools, each respective principals' supervisor was provided with the report
which identified departures from Florida Statutes, SBE Rules, rules of the School Board, and school internal account policies and
procedures, as applicable. Each principal/supervisor has responded and the reply is made a part of each report.
SCHOOL MAKER CK # CK DATE AMOUNT PURPOSE
Clay High School Cory Smith 52 02/22/23 $24.00 Chorus Fee
Clay High School Cory Smith 53 02/23/23 $300.00 Chorus Field Trip

Gap Analysis
SBE Rule 6A-1.087, Florida Administrative Code, requires the submission of a written and signed report to the School Board for
the audit of school internal accounts. 
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been the practice of the district to provide individual reports for each school's internal accounts and response letters
annually.

Expected Outcomes
The submission of the reports will provide greater transparency regarding the accuracy of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable statutes, rules, guidelines, policies, and procedures.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe,m efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Receive and file the individual school reports and responses for the year ending June 30, 2024.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs Mary Kay Kirk, Internal Accounts Coordinator, (904) 336
6746

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact on schools or budgets by the receipt of these reports and responses.

Review Comments

Attachments

CHS NSF check write off Agenda.pdf

Page 275 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-nsf-check-write-off-agenda.pdf


Page 276 of 402

DRAFT



Page 277 of 402

DRAFT



Page 278 of 402

DRAFT



Page 279 of 402

DRAFT



Page 281 of 402

DRAFT



Page 282 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 -  Approval of the 2024-2025 Payroll Calendars

Description
The adopted payroll calendar serves as the instrument for the reporting of employees for payroll purposes.  

Gap Analysis
Section V (5.04) of the School Board of Clay County rules states that the School Board shall annually adopt a payroll calendar
for pay periods and paydays for the employees of the Board.  Approval of a calendar is necessary to be in compliance with this
rule.

Previous Outcomes
All proposed 2024-2025 payroll calendars are developed based on approved work calendars which were adopted on February 1,
2024.

Expected Outcomes
Proposed calendars should be approved by the school board.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective, equitable, and efficient use of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the 2024-2025 payroll calendars.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, ext. 66721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net, Michelle Larson,
Supervisor of Payroll, michelle.larson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

2024-2025 Master Payroll Calendar.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 10 Mo 196 & 197.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 11 Month 216.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 12 month 260 .pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Employee Work Days.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 24_25 Payroll Processing Dates.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - 9 Month ALL.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - SUMMER 2024.pdf

2024-2025 Pay Period Work Dates_Calendars - FYCA .pdf

Page 283 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-master-payroll-calendar.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-10-mo-196-197.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-11-month-216.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-12-month-260.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-24_25-payroll-employee-work-days.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-24_25-payroll-processing-dates.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-9-month-all.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-summer-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-pay-period-work-dates_calendars-fyca.pdf


CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

PAYROLL MASTER CALENDAR DATES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE PAY PERIOD BEGIN DATE END DATE

EMPLOYEE 
SUBMIT 

TIMESHEET

ADMINISTRATORS 
MUST SUBMIT 

TIMECARDS AND 
CERTIFICATIONS BY 

4:00 PM

PAYROLL 
MERGE
9:00 AM

HR FINAL KEY 
3:00PM

BN FINAL KEY 
4:00PM

PAYROLL 
PROCESS

PAYROLL / 
VENDOR 
CHECKS 
ISSUED

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 6/25/24 6/26/24 6/27/24 6/26/24 7/8/24 7/9/24

1 24 7/15/24 2401130 7/1/24 7/6/24 7/3/24 7/8/24 7/9/24 7/8/24 7/10/24 7/11/24
2 23 7/31/24 2401140 7/7/24 7/13/24 7/12/24 7/18/24 7/22/24 7/18/24 7/25/24 7/29/24
3 22 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 7/26/24 7/31/24 8/5/24 7/31/24 8/12/24 8/13/24
4 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 8/16/24 8/20/24 8/22/24 8/20/24 8/27/24 8/28/24
5 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 8/30/24 9/4/24 9/5/24 9/4/24 9/6/24 9/10/24 9/11/24
6 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 9/13/24 9/17/24 9/19/24 9/17/24 9/20/24 9/25/24 9/26/24
7 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 9/27/24 10/2/24 10/4/24 10/2/24 10/7/24 10/9/24 10/10/24
8 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 10/18/24 10/21/24 10/23/24 10/21/24 10/24/24 10/28/24 10/29/24
9 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 11/1/24 11/5/24 11/6/24 11/5/24 11/7/24 11/12/24 11/13/24

10 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 11/15/24 11/18/24 11/20/24 11/18/24 11/21/24 11/25/24 11/26/24
11 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 11/22/24 12/3/24 12/5/24 12/3/24 12/6/24 12/10/24 12/11/24
12 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 12/13/24 12/16/24 12/17/24 12/16/24 12/17/24 12/18/24 12/19/24
13 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 12/20/24 1/3/25 1/6/25 1/3/25 1/7/25 1/9/25 1/10/25
14 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 1/17/25 1/21/25 1/23/25 1/21/25 1/24/25 1/28/25 1/31/25
15 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 1/31/25 2/3/25 2/5/25 2/3/25 2/6/25 2/11/25 2/12/25
16 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 2/14/25 2/18/25 2/20/25 2/18/25 2/21/25 2/25/25 2/26/25
17 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 2/28/25 3/3/25 3/5/25 3/3/25 3/6/25 3/11/25 3/12/25
18 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 3/14/25 3/18/25 3/20/25 3/18/25 3/21/25 3/26/25 3/27/25
19 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 3/28/25 4/1/25 4/3/25 4/1/25 4/4/25 4/9/25 4/10/25
20 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 4/18/25 4/21/25 4/23/25 4/21/25 4/23/25 4/25/25 4/28/25
21 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 5/2/25 5/5/25 5/7/25 5/5/25 5/7/25 5/12/25 5/13/25
22 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 5/16/25 5/19/25 5/21/25 5/19/25 5/23/25 5/27/25 5/28/25

10 month (3) INST Summer Checks / 10 month FYCA (2) INST Summer checks
23 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5/23/25 5/28/25 6/4/25 5/28/25 6/5/25 6/10/25 6/11/25

24 1 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25
Last Work Day
12-Month Submit 

6/12/25
6/16/25 6/18/25 6/16/25 6/19/25 6/25/25 6/26/25

11  month (2) INST Summer Checks

Page 284 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

10 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

8/5/24 - 6/02/25 8/5/24 - 6/02/25
PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES10 month Cafe 

Manager
10 month 

Instructional, 
Support

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 N/A N/A
1 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 10 10
2 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
3 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 10 Labor Day 9/2

4 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 10 10
5 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 15 15
6 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10 10
7 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/11

8 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 6 6 Thanksgiving 11/28 Thanksgiving 11/25-11/27, 11/29

9 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 10 10
10 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 6 6 Christmas 12/25 Christmas 12/23-12/24, 12/26-12/31

11 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 12 12 New Year's 1/1 New Year's 1/2

12 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 10 MLK Day 1/20

13 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10 10
14 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 9 9 President's Day 2/17

15 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 10 10
16 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 5 5 Spring Break 3/17-3/21

17 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 14 13
Fair Day 4/11

Good Friday 4/18
18 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10 10
19 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10 10

22-24 (3) Instructional Summer Checks
20 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5 5
21 1 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 5 5 Memorial Day 5/26 Insurance Deductions End

10 month instructional personnel are paid 1/24 of their calculated contract each pay date 197 196 TOTAL WORK DAYS
10 month Nurse Subs and Adult Temporary/Miscellaeous labor are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 285 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

11 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/17/24-6/10/25

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES11 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support
SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 N/A
1 24 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 8
2 23 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 15
3 22 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
4 21 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 Labor Day 9/2
5 20 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 10
6 19 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 15
7 18 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10
8 17 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 Veteran's Day 11/11
9 16 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 6 Thanksgiving 11/28 Thanksgiving 11/25-11/27, 11/29

10 15 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 10
11 14 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 6 Christmas 12/25 Christmas 12/23-12/24, 12/26-12/31
12 13 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 12 New Year's 1/1 New Year's 1/2
13 12 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 MLK Day 1/20
14 11 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10
15 10 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 9 President's Day 2/17
16 9 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 10
17 8 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 5 Spring Break 3/17-3/21
18 7 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 14 Good Friday 4/18 Fair Day 4/11
19 6 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10
20 5 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10
21 4 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5

22 3 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 11 Memorial Day 5/26
Insurance Deductions End

6/2 (4) Day work week begins
23-24 1-2 6/30/25 (2) Instructional Summer Checks

216 TOTAL WORK DAYS
11 month Adult Temporary/Miscellanous labor personnel are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 286 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

12 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/1/24-6/30/25

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON 
PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES12 month 

Administrators, 
Instructional, Support

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 N/A
1 24 7/15/24 2401130 7/1/24 7/6/24 5 Independence Day 7/4
2 23 7/31/24 2401140 7/7/24 7/13/24 5
3 22 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 10
4 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 15
5 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
6 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 Labor Day 9/2
7 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 10
8 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 15
9 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10

10 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 Veteran's Day 11/11
11 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 9 Thanksgiving 11/28 11/29
12 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 10
13 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 12 Christmas 12/25
14 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 13 New Year's 1/1
15 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 MLK Day 1/20
16 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10
17 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 10
18 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 10
19 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 10
20 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 15 Good Friday 4/18
21 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10
22 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10
23 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5

24 1 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 26 Memorial Day 5/26
Insurance Deductions End

6/2 (4) Day work week begins
12 Month personnel receive 1/24 of their calculated contract pay each pay date 260 TOTAL WORK DAYS
12 month Adult Temporary/Miscellanous Labor personnel are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 287 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

EMPLOYEE WORK DAYS

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/1/24-6/30/25 7/17/24-6/10/25 8/5/24 - 6/02/25 8/5/24 - 6/02/25 8/9/24 - 5/30/25 8/9/24 - 5/30/25 8/12/24 - 5/30/25 8/12/24 - 5/29/25

12 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support

11 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support

10 month Cafe 
Manager

10 month 
Instructional, 

Support

9 month 
Classroom 

Assistants, ESE 
Assistants, 

Guardians, ISS 
Assistants

9 month 
Transportation 

Bus Drivers, Bus 
Monitors, Fuel 

Attendants

9 month 
Elementary Cafe 
Assistant, Van 

Drivers

9 month JR/SR 
High Cafe 

Assistant, Van 
Drivers

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1 24 7/15/24 2401130 7/1/24 7/6/24 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2 23 7/31/24 2401140 7/7/24 7/13/24 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 22 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 10 8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
4 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 15 15 10 10 6 6 5 5
5 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
6 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
7 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
8 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 15 15 15 15 14 14 14 14
9 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
10 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
11 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 9 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
12 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
13 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 12 6 6 6 6 6 5 5
14 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 13 12 12 12 11 11 11 11
15 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
16 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
17 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 10 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
18 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
19 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 10 5 5 5 4 4 4 4
20 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 15 14 14 13 13 13 13 13
21 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
22 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

10 month (3) INST Summer Checks / 10 month FYCA (2) INST Summer checks
23 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
24 1 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 26 11 5 5 4 4 3 3

11  month (2) INST Summer Checks
260 216 197 196 188 188 185 185

Page 288 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR
PAYROLL PROCESSING CALENDAR

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

EMPLOYEE 
SUBMIT 

TIMESHEET

ADMINISTRATORS 
MUST SUBMIT 

TIMECARDS AND 
CERTIFICATIONS 

BY 4:00 PM

PAYROLL 
MERGE
9:00AM

HR FINAL KEY 
3:00PM

BN FINAL 
KEY 4:00PM

PAYROLL 
PROCESS

PAYROLL / 
VENDOR 
CHECKS

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 5/31/23 6/30/24 6/25/24 6/26/24 6/27/24 6/26/24 7/8/24 7/9/24
1 24 7/15/24 2401130 7/1/24 7/6/24 7/3/24 7/8/24 7/9/24 7/8/24 7/10/24 7/11/24
2 23 7/31/24 2401140 7/7/24 7/13/24 7/12/24 7/18/24 7/22/24 7/18/24 7/25/24 7/29/24

SUMMER 7/31/24 2401142 7/1/24 7/13/24 7/12/24 7/18/24 7/25/24 7/29/24
3 22 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 7/26/24 7/31/24 8/5/24 7/31/24 8/12/24 8/13/24

SUMMER 8/15/24 2401152 7/14/24 8/2/24 Last Day of Summer Work
VPK Submit 7/31/24 7/31/24 8/12/24 8/13/24

4 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 8/16/24 8/20/24 8/22/24 8/20/24 8/27/24 8/28/24
5 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 8/30/24 9/4/24 9/5/24 9/4/24 9/6/24 9/10/24 9/11/24
6 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 9/13/24 9/17/24 9/19/24 9/17/24 9/20/24 9/25/24 9/26/24
7 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 9/27/24 10/2/24 10/4/24 10/2/24 10/7/24 10/9/24 10/10/24
8 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 10/18/24 10/21/24 10/23/24 10/21/24 10/24/24 10/28/24 10/29/24
9 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 11/1/24 11/5/24 11/6/24 11/5/24 11/7/24 11/12/24 11/13/24
10 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 11/15/24 11/18/24 11/20/24 11/18/24 11/21/24 11/25/24 11/26/24
11 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 11/22/24 12/3/24 12/5/24 12/3/24 12/6/24 12/10/24 12/11/24
12 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 12/13/24 12/16/24 12/17/24 12/16/24 12/17/24 12/18/24 12/19/24
13 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 12/20/24 1/3/25 1/6/25 1/3/25 1/7/25 1/9/25 1/10/25
14 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 1/17/25 1/21/25 1/23/25 1/21/25 1/24/25 1/28/25 1/31/25
15 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 1/31/25 2/3/25 2/5/25 2/3/25 2/6/25 2/11/25 2/12/25
16 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 2/14/25 2/18/25 2/20/25 2/18/25 2/21/25 2/25/25 2/26/25
17 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 2/28/25 3/3/25 3/5/25 3/3/25 3/6/25 3/11/25 3/12/25
18 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 3/14/25 3/18/25 3/20/25 3/18/25 3/21/25 3/26/25 3/27/25
19 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 3/28/25 4/1/25 4/3/25 4/1/25 4/4/25 4/9/25 4/10/25
20 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 4/18/25 4/21/25 4/23/25 4/21/25 4/23/25 4/25/25 4/28/25
21 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 5/2/25 5/5/25 5/7/25 5/5/25 5/7/25 5/12/25 5/13/25
22 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 5/16/25 5/19/25 5/21/25 5/19/25 5/23/25 5/27/25 5/28/25

10 month (3) INST Summer Checks / 10 month FYCA (2) INST Summer checks
23 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5/23/25 5/28/25 6/4/25 5/28/25 6/5/25 6/10/25 6/11/25

24
1

6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25

Last Work Day
12-Month Submit 

6/12/25 6/16/25 6/18/25 6/16/25 6/19/25 6/25/25 6/26/25
11  month (2) INST Summer Checks

Page 289 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

9 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

8/9/24 - 5/30/25 8/9/24 - 5/30/25 8/12/24 - 5/30/25 8/12/24 - 5/29/25

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES
9 month 

Classroom 
Assistants, ESE 
Assistants, ISS 

Assistants

9 month 
Transportation 

Bus Drivers, Bus 
Monitors, Fuel 

Attendants

9 month 
Elementary Cafe 
Assistant, Van 

Drivers

9 month JR/SR 
High Cafe 

Assistant, Van 
Drivers

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24
1 21 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 6 6 5 5
2 20 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 10 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
3 19 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 10 10 10 Labor Day 9/2
4 18 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 10 10 10 10
5 17 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 14 14 14 14 Teacher Planning 10/14
6 16 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10 10 9 10 Early Release 10/31 Elem Cafe Assistants & Van Drivers
7 15 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 10 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/11
8 14 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 6 6 6 6 Thanksgiving 11/28 Thanksgiving 11/25-11/27, 11/29
9 13 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 10 10 10 10

10 12 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 6 6 5 5 Christmas 12/25 Early Release 12/20 All Cafe Assistants & Van Drivers
Christmas 12/23-12/24, 12/26-12/31

11 11 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 11 11 11 11 New Year's 1/1 New Year's 1/2
Teacher Planning 1/3

12 10 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 10 10 10 MLK Day 1/20
13 9 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10 10 10 10
14 8 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 9 9 9 9 President's Day 2/17
15 7 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 10 10 10 10

16 6 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 4 4 4 4 Spring Break 3/17-3/21
Planning Day 3/24

17 5 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 13 13 13 13 Fair Day 4/11
Good Friday 4/18

18 4 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10 10 10 10
19 3 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10 10 10 10
20 2 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5 5 5 5

21 1 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 4 4 4 3 Memorial Day 5/26 Insurance Deductions End

9 month Adult Temporary/Miscellaeous/Student labor personnel are paid 
based on this payroll calendar

188 188 185 185 Total Work Days

Page 290 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

SUMMER 2024

PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE DUE DATE

Summer 07/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 6/26/24

Summer 07/31/24 2401142 7/1/24 7/15/24 7/18/24

Summer 08/15/24 2401152 7/16/24 8/2/24 7/31/24

Page 291 of 402

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2024 - 2025 PAYROLL CALENDAR

FLORIDA YOUTH CHALLENGE ACADEMY

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/22/24 - 6/10/25 7/22/24 - 6/10/25
PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES

FYCA 10 month 
Instructional

FYCA 9 month 
Support

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 7/10/24 2401122 6/1/24 6/30/24 N/A N/A
1 24 8/15/24 2401150 7/14/24 7/27/24 5 5 First Day All - 7/22
2 23 8/30/24 2401160 7/28/24 8/17/24 15 15
3 22 9/13/24 2401170 8/18/24 8/31/24 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
4 21 9/30/24 2401180 9/1/24 9/14/24 10 10 Labor Day 9/2

5 20 10/15/24 2401190 9/15/24 9/28/24 8 7 9/18 Nine-Month Support Only
9/19 & 9/20

6 19 10/31/24 2401200 9/29/24 10/19/24 15 15
7 18 11/15/24 2401210 10/20/24 11/2/24 10 10
8 17 11/29/24 2401220 11/3/24 11/16/24 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/11
9 16 12/13/24 2401230 11/17/24 11/30/24 8 8 Thanksgiving 11/28 Thanksgiving 11/27 & 11/29

10 15 12/31/24 2401240 12/1/24 12/14/24 7 5 12/6 & 12/9 Nine-Month Support Only
12/11-12/14

11 14 1/15/25 2501010 12/15/24 12/31/24 1 1 Christmas 12/25 12/16 - 12/24 & 12/26-31
12 13 1/31/25 2501020 1/1/25 1/18/25 1 1 New Year's 1/1 1/2 - 1/17
13 12 2/14/25 2501030 1/19/25 2/1/25 10 10 MLK Day 1/20
14 11 2/28/25 2501040 2/2/25 2/15/25 10 10
15 10 3/14/25 2501050 2/16/25 3/1/25 9 9 President's Day 2/17

16 9 3/31/25 2501060 3/2/25 3/15/25 8 7 3/5 Nine-Month Support Only
3/6 - 3/7

17 8 4/15/25 2501070 3/16/25 3/29/25 10 10
18 7 4/30/25 2501080 3/30/25 4/19/25 13 13 4/17 - 4/18
19 6 5/15/25 2501090 4/20/25 5/3/25 10 9 4/21 Nine-Month Support Only
20 5 5/30/25 2501100 5/4/25 5/17/25 10 10

23-24 1-2 (2) Instructional Summer Checks
21 4 6/13/25 2501110 5/18/25 5/24/25 5 5

22 3 6/30/25 2501120 5/25/25 6/30/25 11 8 Memorial Day 5/26
6/5, 6/6 & 6/9 Nine Month Support Only Insurance Deductions End

10 month instructional personnel are paid 1/24 of their calculated contract each pay date 196 188 TOTAL WORK DAYS

Page 292 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of February, 2024.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - March, 2024 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2024.pdf

Page 293 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-march-2024.pdf


Page 294 of 402

DRAFT



Page 295 of 402

DRAFT



Page 296 of 402

DRAFT



Page 297 of 402

DRAFT



Page 298 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Exterior Door Replacements – County Wide #23-MA-325:  Contract Period is May 5, 2024 through May 4, 2025.  This
contract period is for one (1) year and is the first of three renewal options.
b.  Flooring Services – County Wide #22-MA-322:  Contracted Period is June 1, 2024 through May 31, 2025.  This contract
period is for one (1) year and is the second of three renewal options.
c.  Plumbing Construction – County Wide #22-F-235R:  Contract Period is May 15, 2024 through May 14, 2025.  This contract
period is for (1) year and is the second of three renewal options.
d.  Contract Services For Site Work – County Wide #23-F-244:  Contracted Period is May 15, 2024 through May 14, 2025.  This
contract period is for (1) year and is the first of three renewals options.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Exterior Door Replacements – County Wide #23-MA-325:

Superior Hardware Products 716 Industry Drive, Longwood, FL 32750-
b. Flooring Services – County Wide #22-MA-322:

Teal Tile & Carpet Inc PO Box D, Starke, FL 32091-
c. Plumbing Construction – County Wide #22-F-235R:

Gary S Bailey Inc 5201 CR 218, Middleburg, FL 32068-
d. Contract Services For Site Work – County Wide #23-F-244:

Creative Concrete Design of Columbia County Inc 161 SW Covey Ct, Lake City, FL 32025-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Page 299 of 402

DRAFT



Financial Impact
a.  Exterior Door Replacements – County Wide #23-MA-325:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract
renewal is $210,000 from Capital Revenue.

b.  Flooring Services – County Wide #22-MA-322:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract renewal is
$250,000 General and Capital Revenue.

c.  Plumbing Construction – County Wide #22-F-235R:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract renewal is
$150,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue.

d.  Contract Services For Site Work – County Wide #23-F-244:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract
renewal is $500,000 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 300 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Description
Establish a Substantial Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Project Contractor, has
reached Substantial Completion on January 23, 2024 and Final Completion on February 22, 2024, in accordance with the project
documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Substantial Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

Certificate of Final Completion - KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms

Page 301 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf


Page 302 of 402

DRAFT



Page 303 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Substantial and Final Completion of Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting Replacement

Description
Establish a Substantial Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF) and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Project Contractor, has
reached Substantial Completion on December 13, 2023 and Final Completion on December 28, 2023, in accordance with the
project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Substantial Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

Certificate of Final Completion - BLC Parking Lot Renovations

Page 304 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-blc-parking-lot-renovations-1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-blc-parking-lot-renovations.pdf


Page 305 of 402

DRAFT



Page 306 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Appointments for the Citizens Oversight Committee

Description
The citizens of Clay County approved a half-cent school capital outlay sales surtax on the November 2020 general election
ballot. School Board Policy 1.14, which was adopted by the School Board on February 4, 2021, provides for the formation of a
Citizens Oversight Committee to monitor and report on the use of the sales surtax revenues to assure the public that the monies
are being utilized as provided for by state law. The committee must consist of recommended appointees by each School Board
member and by the Superintendent of Schools. School Board Policy 1.14 requires that the recommended Committee, which
includes all proposed appointees, including alternate appointees who will only assume duties if needed, must be approved by the
School Board as a whole at a regular School Board meeting.

Gap Analysis
Terms expire every three years, with the exception of the alternate. Board members have the option of replacing expiring term
members’ appointment with a new appointment.  Previously appointed individuals and/or alternates representing a District are
unable to complete their service on the Oversight Committee.  In this instance, the Board member with the vacancy must
recommend an individual for appointment to comply with School Board Policy 1.14.  

Previous Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County adopted School Board Policy 1.14 on February 20, 2021 which created the Citizens Oversight
Committee to monitor and report annually on the compliance with surtax revenues as required by the half-cent surtax referendum
adopted in the November 2020 general election.  On May 6, 2021 the Board approved the appointments of the inaugural Citizens
Oversight Committee members and alternates.  

Expected Outcomes
It is expected that the School Board will approve the recommended members and/or alternates to serve on the Citizens Oversight
Committee as submitted.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve new appointments to the Half-Cent Sales Surtax Citizens Oversight Committee as submitted by the individual members
of the School Board and the Superintendent of Schools.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent, Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Planning & Intergovernmental Relations, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Citizen Oversight Committee Members.pdf

Page 307 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/citizen-oversight-committee-members.pdf


Page 308 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Agreement between the Clay County School Board, Clay
County, and Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (Baxley Villas)

Description
In December of 2023, representatives from Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. contacted the Clay County School Board’s
Planning department seeking approval to develop 72 single family dwelling units homes on a 6.80 acre tract of land at 1586/1594
Baxley Road, Middleburg, FL 32068 in unincorporated Clay County, Florida.  It was determined “inadequate capacity (student
stations) at Coppergate Elementary School and contiguous elementary schools” specifically, 19 elementary school student
stations, resulting in a net deficiency of 18 student stations due to three existing dwelling currently on the properties.
In accordance with the Clay County Interlocal Agreement for Coordinated Planning (CCIA), to mitigate the deficiency, a PSM
Agreement may be entered into between the School Board and the Developer. Negotiations between the School Board’s Planning
department and Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc, in accordance with CCIA's calculation methodology, resulted in a
mutually agreeable resolution. The sum of $613,830.42 would be paid to the School Board’s impact fee account to mitigate the
capacity deficit. In return, the School District would ensure sufficient capacity to accommodate the elementary school students
generated by the project.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in a School Board Concurrency Reservation Denial Letter (SCDL).  In effect, The Clay County Board of
County Commissioners would deny approval of the Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, development.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved previous PSM Agreements in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the PSM Agreement and forward it to the Clay County Board of County
Commissioners for their approval.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Clay County School Board, Clay County, and Forestar Real Estate Group, Inc. PSM Agreement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904)336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904)336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Planning and Intergovernmental Affairs, (904)336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Payment of $613,830.42 from Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc. to the School Board for projected growth impact to the
Clay County area school (impact fee account).

Review Comments

Attachments

PSM Agreement - Forestar Real Estate Group.pdf

Page 309 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/psm-agreement-forestar-real-estate-group.pdf


Page 310 of 402

DRAFT



Page 311 of 402

DRAFT



Page 312 of 402

DRAFT



Page 313 of 402

DRAFT



Page 314 of 402

DRAFT



Page 315 of 402

DRAFT



Page 316 of 402

DRAFT



Page 317 of 402

DRAFT



Page 318 of 402

DRAFT



Page 319 of 402

DRAFT



Page 320 of 402

DRAFT



Page 321 of 402

DRAFT



Page 322 of 402

DRAFT



Page 323 of 402

DRAFT



Page 324 of 402

DRAFT



Page 325 of 402

DRAFT



Page 326 of 402

DRAFT



Page 327 of 402

DRAFT



Page 328 of 402

DRAFT



Page 329 of 402

DRAFT



Page 330 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Lakeside Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 12,
2024 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) qualified bidders. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Lakeside Elementary School Restroom Renovation.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Thomas May Construction Company, the base bid in
the amount of $302,435.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Lakeside Elementary Restroom Renovations Contract 4.4.24.pdf

Page 331 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lakeside-elementary-restroom-renovations-contract-4424.pdf


Page 332 of 402

DRAFT



Page 333 of 402

DRAFT



Page 334 of 402

DRAFT



Page 335 of 402

DRAFT



Page 336 of 402

DRAFT



Page 337 of 402

DRAFT



Page 338 of 402

DRAFT



Page 339 of 402

DRAFT



Page 340 of 402

DRAFT



Page 341 of 402

DRAFT



Page 342 of 402

DRAFT



Page 343 of 402

DRAFT



Page 344 of 402

DRAFT



Page 345 of 402

DRAFT



Page 346 of 402

DRAFT



Page 347 of 402

DRAFT



Page 348 of 402

DRAFT



Page 349 of 402

DRAFT



Page 350 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C31 - Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 12,
2024 at 2:30 p.m.  The project had two (2) qualified bidders. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Thomas May Construction Company, the base bid in
the amount of $439,092.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Orange Park Elementary Restroom Contract 4.4.24.pdf

Page 351 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/orange-park-elementary-restroom-contract-4424.pdf


Page 352 of 402

DRAFT



Page 353 of 402

DRAFT



Page 354 of 402

DRAFT



Page 355 of 402

DRAFT



Page 356 of 402

DRAFT



Page 357 of 402

DRAFT



Page 358 of 402

DRAFT



Page 359 of 402

DRAFT



Page 360 of 402

DRAFT



Page 361 of 402

DRAFT



Page 362 of 402

DRAFT



Page 363 of 402

DRAFT



Page 364 of 402

DRAFT



Page 365 of 402

DRAFT



Page 366 of 402

DRAFT



Page 367 of 402

DRAFT



Page 368 of 402

DRAFT



Page 369 of 402

DRAFT



Page 370 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C32 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.4.24

Page 371 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4424.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Barber & Associates, Inc. General and Roofing 
Contractor 

$15,000,000.00 April 30, 2025 

 

Page 372 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C33 - Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 14,
2024 at 2:30 p.m.  The project had three (3) qualified bidders. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Orange Park High School Media Center.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Blackwater Construction Services, LLC, the base bid
in the amount of $935,000.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation Contract 4.4.24.pdf

Page 373 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/orange-park-high-school-media-center-renovation-contract-4424.pdf


Page 374 of 402

DRAFT



Page 375 of 402

DRAFT



Page 376 of 402

DRAFT



Page 377 of 402

DRAFT



Page 378 of 402

DRAFT



Page 379 of 402

DRAFT



Page 380 of 402

DRAFT



Page 381 of 402

DRAFT



Page 382 of 402

DRAFT



Page 383 of 402

DRAFT



Page 384 of 402

DRAFT



Page 385 of 402

DRAFT



Page 386 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C34 - S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 14,
2024 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had one (1) qualified bidder. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, T & M Electric of Clay County LLC, the base bid in
the amount of $499,682.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

S. Bryan Jennings Fire Alarm Repair.Replacement 4.4.24.pdf

Page 387 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/s-bryan-jennings-fire-alarm-repairreplacement-4424.pdf


Page 388 of 402

DRAFT



Page 389 of 402

DRAFT



Page 390 of 402

DRAFT



Page 391 of 402

DRAFT



Page 392 of 402

DRAFT



Page 393 of 402

DRAFT



Page 394 of 402

DRAFT



Page 395 of 402

DRAFT



Page 396 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C35 - Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has
reached Substantial Completion on March 15, 2024 and Final Completion on March 15, 2024 in accordance with the project
documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

FIH Batting Practice Building Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

Page 397 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fih-batting-practice-building-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf


Page 398 of 402

DRAFT



Page 399 of 402

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 4, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C36 - Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has
reached Substantial Completion on December 1, 2023 and Final Completion on March 15, 2024 in accordance with the project
documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

MHS Cafeteria Expansion Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

Page 400 of 402

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-cafeteria-expansion-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf


Page 401 of 402

DRAFT



Page 402 of 402

DRAFT




